
 
 

 
 

CABINET MEMBER SIGNING 
 

Friday, 18th February, 2022, 10.00 am 
 
Members: Councillors Zena Brabazon – Cabinet Member for Early Years, Children, 
and Families 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

3. ADMISSION TO SCHOOLS - DETERMINED ADMISSION 
ARRANGEMENTS FOR 2023/24  (PAGES 1 - 68) 
 
 

 
Fiona Rae, Acting Committees Manager 
Tel – 020 8489 3541 
Email: fiona.rae@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Fiona Alderman 
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
George Meehan House, 294 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8JZ 
 
Thursday, 10 February 2022 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 11  

Report for:  Cabinet Member Signing – 18 February 2022 
 
Title: Admission to Schools – Determined Admission Arrangements for 

2023/24 
Report  
authorised by:  Eveleen Riordan, Assistant Director for Schools and Learning 
 
Lead Officer: Carlo Kodsi, Head of Admissions and School Organisation, 

Carlo.Kodsi@haringey.gov.uk, 020 8489 1823  
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 
Report for Key/  
Non-Key Decision: Key Decision  
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1. To continue to meet statutory requirements, the Cabinet Member for Early 

Years, Children and Families is requested to determine the proposed 
admission arrangements for the borough’s community and voluntary controlled 
(VC) schools for the 2023/24 academic year. Recommendations below (para. 
3) also ask the Cabinet Member to agree to their publication on or before 15 
March 2022 on the Council’s website, such details to include advice on the 
right of objection to the Schools Adjudicator. 

 
1.2. This year there was no change proposed to the admission arrangements for 

Haringey community and voluntary controlled (VC) schools. The only changes 
to the admission arrangements are those reflected in the mandatory 
requirements that already came into effect from September 2021 because of 
the Department of Education’s (DfE) new School Admissions Code (2021)1.   
 

1.3. On 9 November 2021, Council’s Cabinet agreed that statutory consultation 
should be carried out on the proposed admission arrangements between 26 
November 2021 and 7 January 2022.  

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 
2.1. This paper requests me to determine the Council’s admission arrangements for 

the academic year 2023/24 via a Cabinet Member signing. The full range of 
reasons for agreeing the decision are set out from para. 4.1 - 4.3.  

 
3. Recommendations  

 
3.1. The Cabinet Member is asked:  
 

 To determine the Council’s admission arrangements for the academic year 
2023/24 as set out in Appendices 1 – 4 to the report.  
 

                                        
1 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/school-admissions-code--2  

Page 1 Agenda Item 3

mailto:Carlo.Kodsi@haringey.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/school-admissions-code--2


 

Page 2 of 11  

 To agree the in-year fair access protocol as set out in Appendix 5 to come 
into force from 1 March 2022.  

 

 To agree that the determined arrangements for all maintained primary and 
secondary schools in the borough are published on the Council’s website by 
15 March 2022 with an explanation of the right for any person or body, 
under the School Admissions (Admission Arrangements and Co-ordination 
of Admission Arrangements) Regulations 2012 (‘the Regulations’), to object 
to the Schools Adjudicator in the specified circumstances set out2.   

 
4. Reasons for decision 
 
4.1. The School Admissions Code 2021 (referred as ‘the Code’) requires all 

admission authorities to determine admission arrangements every year, even if 
they have not changed from previous years. Regulation 17 of the Regulations 
2012 also requires admission authorities to determine admission arrangements 
by 28 February in the determination year. 
 

4.2. In addition, the Regulations require the admission authority (in this case the 
local authority) to publish on its website by 15 March in the determination year 
the determined arrangements of all maintained primary and secondary school 
and academies in the borough, advising the right to object to the Schools 
Adjudicator, where it is considered that the arrangement do not comply with the 
mandatory provisions of the Code.   
 

4.3. The Council consults on its admission arrangements annually irrespective of 
whether or not there is a proposed change to the arrangements. This is to 
ensure transparency and openness on the contents of the admission 
arrangements and to allow all stakeholders to make representations which can 
then be considered as part of the determination of the arrangements.  

 
5. Alternative options considered 
 
5.1. This year we did not propose a change to the admission arrangements 

including the oversubscription criteria for community and VC schools.  
 

5.2. While there are other ways admission arrangements can influence the 
allocation of school places set out in Code  (e.g. designated catchment areas, 
identified feeder schools or giving priority in our oversubscription criteria to 
children eligible for the early years premium/ pupil premium), none of the above 
serve the local interest of our families and school communities so no 
alternative option is being considered at the time of writing this report.  

 
6. Background information 

 
6.1. All admissions authorities must have admission arrangements that clearly set 

out how children will be admitted, including the criteria that will be applied if 
there are more applications than places at the school. 
 

                                        
2 Paragraphs 19 – 24 of the Regulations 

Page 2



 

Page 3 of 11  

6.2. Oversubscription criteria must be reasonable, clear, objective, procedurally fair, 
and comply with all relevant legislation, including equalities legislation. 
Admission authorities must ensure that their arrangements will not 
disadvantage unfairly, either directly or indirectly, a child from a particular 
social or racial group, or a child with a disability or special educational needs, 
and that other policies do not discourage parents from applying for a place for 
their child. 
 

6.3. The Council is the admission authority for community and voluntary controlled 
schools within the borough and is therefore responsible for determining the 
admission arrangements for these schools. 
 

6.4. Academies, foundation schools and voluntary aided schools are their own 
admission authority; they must consult on and determine their admission 
arrangements by 28 February of each year. The Council has a statutory duty to 
monitor the arrangements determined by own admitting authority schools to 
ensure compliance with the Code  and all relevant legislation and Regulations.  
 

6.5. Admission authorities are responsible for admissions and must act in 
accordance with the Code, the School Admission Appeals Code (2012), other 
laws relating to admissions, and relevant human rights and equalities 
legislation. 

 
Consultation  

 
6.6. In accordance with paragraph 1.46 of the Code, a six-week consultation (26 

November 2021 - 7 January 2022) was carried out to invite representation or 
objection from all relevant stakeholders. A consultation document and 
questionnaire were used as the basis of informing stakeholders of the 
proposed admission arrangements. 

  
6.7. A range of modes and methods of communication were used to inform and 

facilitate feedback from stakeholders regarding the proposal:  
 

 through the Schools Bulletin which is distributed to the headteacher and 
chair of governors of schools in the borough 

 through direct emails to head teachers and Chairs of Governors 

 to all children’s centres in the borough 

 to all registered nurseries and child minders and any other early years 
providers 

 on the Council’s online primary and secondary admissions page  

 via information in all libraries across the borough 

 to all councillors 

 to both MPs with constituencies in Haringey 

 to the diocesan authorities 

 to neighbouring authorities  

 other groups, bodies, parents and carers as appropriate 
 
6.8. Stakeholders were given the opportunity to express their views in writing, via a 

questionnaire – both electronically and via the hard copy attached to the 
consultation document, by email and post. 

Page 3



 

Page 4 of 11  

 
Equality and Diversity Monitoring  

 
6.9. As part of the consultation process, respondents were asked to complete an 

equality and diversity questionnaire, looking at Gender, Age, Ethnicity and 
Disability. The information collected will help identify any special requirements; 
promote equality; and improve choice and diversity. This information will only 
be retained and used for as long as is necessary. Where data is no longer 
required, it will be destroyed in line with relevant destruction policies and 
processes. 

 
7. Summary of responses  
 
7.1. All responses were received via questionnaire. Overall only a total of 3 

completed responses were received in favour of the proposed arrangements 
and fair access protocol. This can be interpreted to suggest that our 
arrangements continue to serve the local interest of our families and school 
communities.  
 

7.2. The responses from anonymised individuals are included at Appendix 7b.   
 
Haringey’s Fair Access Protocol - Appendix 5  
 

7.3. Haringey’s fair access protocol ensures unplaced children, especially the most 
vulnerable, are offered a school place without delay and is a statutory 
requirement set out in the Code. In using the protocol, Haringey ensures that 
these children and young people are shared fairly across all Haringey schools 
and that this process is open and transparent. 
 

7.4. All Haringey schools, including schools that are their own admission authority 
continue to support the principles and approach of the fair access protocol. 
Paragraph 3 of the fair access protocol sets out that “It is essential to the 
success of the fair access protocol that all headteachers and governing bodies 
agree to the aims, principles and procedures and give their fullest support.”  

 

7.5. The Fair Access Panel is the panel which meets monthly to determine how 
these young people are admitted to an education roll and to ensure equity 
across all settings. 

 
7.6. As part of the consultation, we asked key stakeholders (headteachers and 

governing bodies) to review the protocol in order to make an assessment of its 
effectiveness in line with para. 3.30 (b) of the Code which requires all Local 
Authorities to assess the effectiveness of fair access protocols on an annual 
basis. There were several objections received from one source and these are 
summarised below.  

 
A) “Haringey need to demonstrate that the usual, reasonable IYAP procedures 

have been used before a student comes to the Fair Access Panel (FAP). 
FAP should only be used in exceptional circumstances.”  
 

Page 4



 

Page 5 of 11  

LA response: Children are referred to the fair access panel only if they 
qualify under the scheme of the protocol and in accordance with the 
requirements set out at para. 3.17 of the Admissions Code. Our records 
indicate there have only been a very small number of cases referred to 
panel under exceptional circumstances since the beginning of the 2021/22 
academic year. See more information at para. C) below.   
 

B) “In addition, 3.19 of the code states that parental views may be sought but 

should not determine the outcome of the FAP. Parental preference should 

not be a feature of the FAP, as it leads to unrealistic expectations for 

parents. (Pt 21: "preferences made and views of parents/carers and the 

view of the pupil (including religious affiliation)".   

 

LA response:  The panel is fully aware that there is no duty to comply with 

parental preference (the fair access guidance3 produced by the DfE sets 

this out), but the Code is very clear (para. 3.19) that parents’ views should 

be taken into account. The protocol already acknowledges that the panel 

must make a decision on the most appropriate provision in the child’s best 

interests, irrespective of parental preference. We have found that families 

are more willing to engage if parental preference has been met and the 

views of parent/carers and the view of the pupil (including religious 

affiliation) must always be taken into account in line with statutory guidance.  

It should also be noted that there are instances where parental preference 

as expressed, cannot be complied with by the Panel and we work with the 

family to manage expectations around this. 

 

C) “Pt 5: Exceptional circumstances as defined by the LA: what evidence can 

schools reasonably expect to explain Haringey's decision to categorise an 

application as 'exceptional'? There is concern that the criteria at 5K in the 

Protocol is used too widely. 'Exceptional' should be used rarely.”  

 

LA response: A decision to categorise an application as ‘exceptional’ is 

made based on the circumstances of the case and in line with the 

requirements of the Admissions Code. Our records indicate that since the 

beginning of the academic year, only a very small number of cases have 

been referred to the panel under ‘exceptional’ circumstances.  

 

These cases relate predominantly to applications for a Year 10 place where 

we are not able to meet parental preference and there is a limited number 

of secondary schools with vacancies. A decision to allocate a school place 

in an open and transparent forum is favoured by panel members so we can 

ensure there is fair distribution of pupils, and no single school receives a 

disproportionate number of Year 10 pupils. The vast majority of applications 

                                        
3https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1012

993/FAP_Guidance.pdf  

Page 5

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1012993/FAP_Guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1012993/FAP_Guidance.pdf


 

Page 6 of 11  

for a Year 10 place are processed through the normal in-year admissions 

route. On average, only 1 or 2 are referred to the fair access panel each 

month because we have not able to meet parental preference.  

 

D) There is also concern that when a student is placed via the FAP the 

siblings' link, or any other priority link should not be applied subsequently to 

that family.  

 

LA response: The current admission arrangements for Haringey give 

priority to siblings attending the school regardless of which criterion they 

were admitted under. There are no plans to alter the sibling criterion for 

children admitted via fair access because it would cause disproportionate 

disadvantage to these families, many of whom are already highly 

vulnerable.  

 
E) “Pt 28: 15 days between notification and admittance does not always allow 

for the timely sharing of vital information, particularly with reference to social 

services, both Haringey and other LAs.  We also need information from the 

previous school when the young person is presented to panel. If no 

information is forthcoming an extension should be granted. This also has 

implications for the 6 days permitted to return the student to panel.” 

 

LA response: The Code sets out that once a child has been allocated a 

school place via the fair access protocol, arrangements should be made for 

the child to start at the school as soon as possible. Information gathering 

should not be a barrier to admission and schools must not delay on the 

basis that they have not received timely information from a previous school 

or from Social Care. The Code specifically states that admission authorities 

must not refuse to admit a child solely because information has not 

been received from their previous school (para. 2.9 d).  

 

F) “Para21. final bullet point (The presumption that a pupil will return to the 

school where they were previously on roll)...) This should be removed. 

Instead it should say that the individual circumstances of the child should be 

looked at before this decision is made. It is clear that returning a student is 

not always in their best interest.” 

 

LA response: The panel collectively agreed some years ago to introduce 

this as a preventative strategy to mitigate against schools off-rolling pupils 

unlawfully and to date, it has been very effective. It is already recognised in 

the protocol that it may not be in the best interest for every single pupil to 

automatically return to their former school. Suitable alternatives to returning 

to the former school have been sought by panel members in the past 

Page 6



 

Page 7 of 11  

because it has not been appropriate, and this remains a viable option in any 

discussion on any child.  

 
G) Year 11 students - are the views of the students taken into account when 

they come through FAP? Is it the correct time to move schools? Are they 

made fully aware of the curriculum implications when moving schools? 

 

LA response: Children referred to fair access transferring from other 

schools are referred because they are not able to continue to travel to their 

current school because it is considered to be an unreasonable travelling 

distance (more than 3 miles). This unreasonable distance will have been 

the result of a house move.  These pupils are treated as unplaced and are 

frequently  new arrivals in Haringey from other parts of the UK. Continuing 

to attend their previous school is not practically feasible, irrespective of 

curriculum implications. We are aware that Haringey schools work to match 

curriculum and syllabus requirements for these children, wherever possible.  

Next Steps  

7.7. The Cabinet Member for Early Years, Children and Families is asked to 
determine the Council’s admission arrangements for the academic year 
2023/24 as set out in Appendices 1-4.  
 

7.8. In addition, the Cabinet Member is recommended to agree the in-year fair 
access protocol to come into force from 1 March 2022.  

 
8. Contribution to strategic outcomes 
 
8.1. Ensuring we have a transparent and objective school admissions process with 

oversubscription criteria that is reasonable, clear, objective and compliant with 
all relevant legislation, including equalities legislation, underpins Priority 1 in 
the Corporate Plan which seeks to enable every child to have the best start in 
life with access to high quality education. 

 
9. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 

procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 

Below are financial, governance and legal and equality comments. 
 

Finance 
 

9.1. The Chief Financial Officer has been consulted in the production of this report 
and confirms that there are no direct financial implications as a result of the 
consultation proposals or determination of the Council’s admission 
arrangements.  

 
Legal 

 

Page 7



 

Page 8 of 11  

9.2. The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) has been consulted on 
the contents of this report and comments as follows: The current School 
Admissions Code ('the Code') came into force in September 2021 and was 
issued by the Department for Education under section 84 of the School 
Standards and Framework Act 1998. The Code is to be read alongside the 
School Admissions (Admission Arrangements and Co-ordination of Admission 
Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2012 (‘the Regulations’’). In determining 
its admission arrangements for 2023-2024 the Council has a statutory duty as 
an admissions authority to act in accordance with the Regulations and with the 
relevant provisions of the Code. It must also as a result of its duty under 
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 have due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct which is 
prohibited by or under that Act, advance equality of opportunity, and foster 
good relations in relation to persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it.  
 

9.3. Paragraph 15 of the Code states that all schools must have admission 
arrangements that clearly set out how children will be admitted including the 
criteria that will be applied if there are more applications than places at the 
school. As part of determining its admission arrangements, the Council must 
set an admission number (called the Published Admission Number or PAN) for 
each school’s “relevant age group” i.e. the age group at which pupils are or will 
normally be admitted to the school.  

 
9.4. School admission arrangements are determined by admission authorities. 

Generally, the admission authority for community and voluntary controlled 
schools is the local authority. Admission authorities must set ('determine') 
admission arrangements annually. Generally, where changes are proposed to 
admission arrangements, the admission authority must first publicly consult on 
those arrangements. If no changes are made to the admission arrangements, 
they must be consulted on at least once every 7 years. Consultation must be 
for a minimum of 6 weeks and must take place between 1 October and 31 
January of the school year before those arrangements are to apply (the 
determination year). Consultation must be undertaken when proposals are still 
at a formative stage. It must include sufficient reasons for particular proposals 
to allow those consulted to give intelligent consideration and an intelligent 
response, adequate time must be given for this purpose and the product of the 
consultation must be conscientiously taken into account when the ultimate 
decision is taken.  

 
9.5. In relation to consultation the Council must consult with parents of children 

between the ages of two and eighteen; other persons in the relevant area who 
in the opinion of the admission authority have an interest in the proposed 
admissions; all other admission authorities within the relevant area; whichever 
of the governing body and the local authority who are not the admission 
authority; any adjoining neighbouring local authorities where the admission 
authority is the local authority and in the case of faith schools, the body or 
person representing the religion or religious denomination. The authority must 
also for the duration of the consultation publish a copy of the full proposed 
admission arrangements (including the PAN) on its website together with 
details to whom comments should be sent and the areas on which comments 
are not sought. 

Page 8



 

Page 9 of 11  

 
9.6. It is the responsibility of the authority to ensure that admission arrangements 

are compliant with the Code and relevant legislation. Arrangements mean 
overall procedures, practices, criteria and supplementary information to be 
used in deciding on the allocation of school places. In drawing up the 
arrangements, the authority must ensure that the practices and criteria used 
are reasonable, fair, clear and objective and comply with the relevant 
legislation including equalities legislation. Parents should be able to look at the 
set of arrangements and understand easily how places will be allocated. It is 
for the authority to decide which criteria would be the most suitable according 
to local circumstances. 

 
9.7. Each year all local authorities must formulate and publish on their website a 

scheme by 1 January in the relevant determination year, a scheme to co-
ordinate admission arrangements for the normal admissions round and late 
applications for all publicly funded schools within their area.  All admission 
authorities must participate in co-ordination and provide the local authority with 
the information it needs to co-ordinate admissions by the dates agreed within 
the scheme. There is no requirement for local authorities to co-ordinate in-year 
applications, however, Haringey centrally co-ordinates in-year admissions for 
the vast majority of its schools and has safeguarding protocols in place for 
tracking pupils admitted directly by some schools that administer their own.  

 
9.8. The Code requires that the Council must have a Fair Access Protocol, agreed 

with the majority of schools in its area, to ensure that, outside the normal 

admissions round, unplaced children, especially the most vulnerable, are 

offered a place at a suitable school as quickly as possible.  The Cabinet 

Members will see the Proposed Fair Access Protocol at Appendix 5. 

 

9.9. The proposed admission arrangements for 2023-2024, the proposed co-

ordinated scheme, the proposed fair access protocol and the proposed 

consultation on the proposed admission arrangements for 2023-2024 are in 

compliance with the Code and the Regulations. 

Equality 
 
9.10. The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010 (‘the 

Act’) to have due regard to the need to: 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited under the Act 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those protected 
characteristics and people who do not 

 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and 
people who do not.  

 
The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex 
and sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first 
part of the duty. 

Page 9



 

Page 10 of 11  

 
9.11. The proposed admission arrangements set out in this report comply with the 

public sector equality duty and ensures that, as an admission authority, the 
Council’s arrangements do not directly or indirectly unfairly disadvantage a child 
or adult that possesses any of the characteristics protected under sections 4-12 
of the Act 2010.  
 

9.12. The admission arrangements do not differ materially from the arrangements for 
previous years, but an EqIA has been undertaken to monitor and assess the 
impact of any changing trends. Please see Appendix 7 for the EqIA.  

9.13. The publication of clear admission arrangements for all of our schools (a 
statutory requirement) ensures that admission to schools is a clear and 
transparent process and that parents and carers are able to select preferences 
for a school place with full knowledge of how admission to their local school(s) 
is determined. 
 

9.14. The Head of Admissions and School Organisation in Haringey Council is 
responsible for monitoring the admission arrangements to ensure compliance. 
A report is produced annually and sent to the Office of the School’s Adjudicator 
(OSA) which monitors the fairness of the admission arrangements.  

 
10. Use of Appendices  
 
10.1. The following appendices support this report:  
 

Appendix 1 - Nursery 2023 
Appendix 2 - Reception and Junior 2023 
Appendix 3 - Secondary Transfer 2023 
Appendix 4 – In Year Admissions 2023 
Appendix 5 – Fair Access Protocol March 2022 
Appendix 6 - Sixth Form 2023 
Appendix 7 - EqIA 
Appendix 7b - consultation responses 
 

11. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 

11.1. This report contains no exempt information.  
 

12. Background Documents 
 

1. The Schools Standards and Framework Act 1998 
2. The Education Act 2002 
3. The Education and Inspections Act 2006 
4. Education and Skills Act 2008 
5. The School Admissions Code (September 2021) 
6. School Admissions (Admission Arrangements and Co-ordination of 

Admission Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2012 
7. The School Admissions (Infant Class Sizes) (England) Regulations 2012 
8. The School Admissions (Appeals Arrangements) (England) Regulations 

2012  
9. The Education Act 2011 

Page 10



 

Page 11 of 11  

10. The School Admissions Appeals Code (2012)  

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Starting Nursery in Haringey in September 2023 
 

Determined Admission Arrangements for Nursery Classes in 
Community Primary Schools and St. Aidan’s VC School 

 
Children may have a part-time place in a nursery centre, or a class attached to a school 
in the September following their third birthday. If there are more requests than part-
time places available, the admission rules (over-subscription criteria) explained below 
will be used to decide which children will be admitted. There is no right of appeal 
against the decision to refuse admission of children to nurseries. 
 
Parents/carers should note that admission to a nursery class in a school does not 
guarantee a place in the reception class at the same school. Parent/carers must 
complete their home authority School Admissions Application Form, which will be 
available online, by 15 January in the academic year their child turns four.  
 
Oversubscription criteria for part time places 
 
When the school is oversubscribed, after the admission of pupils with an Education, 
Health and Care plan naming the school, priority for admission will be given to those 
children who meet the criteria set out below, in priority order: 
 
1. Children in Care/Looked After Children 
 
Children who are looked after by a local authority or were previously looked after but 
immediately after being looked after, became subject to an adoption, child 
arrangements, or special guardianship order. 
 
A looked after child is a child who is (a) in the care of a local authority, or (b) being 
provided with accommodation by a local authority in the exercise of their social 
services functions (see the definition in Section 22(1) of the Children Act 1989). 
 
2. Social/Medical 
 
Children who the Authority accepts have an exceptional medical or social need for a 
place at one specific school. Applications will only be considered under this category 
if they are supported by a written statement from a doctor, social worker or other 
relevant independent professional. The information must confirm the exceptional 
medical or social need and demonstrate how the specified school is the only school 
that can meet the defined needs of the child.   
 
3. Brother or Sister (sibling)  
 
Children who will have a brother or sister attending the school (or its associated Infant 
or Junior school) at the time of admission. A sibling is a full brother or sister, a step/half 
brother or sister, a foster brother or sister or an adopted brother or sister living at the 
same address as the child for whom the application is being made. 
 

Page 13



 

 

4. Children of staff  
 
Children whose parent is a member of teaching staff who has been employed at the 
school for two or more years at the time of application or has been recruited to fill a 
vacancy for which there is a demonstrable skill shortage.  
 
5. Distance 
 
Children whose home address is closest to the preferred school. 
 
Distance will be measured in a straight line from the Ordnance Survey address point 
of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of the school, calculated 
using a computerised mapping system. 
 
Tie breakers  
 
Children cannot be considered under more than one criterion. Within each criterion 
the sole tiebreaker to decide between two applications is children whose home 
address is closest to the school, measured in a straight line from the Ordnance 
Survey address point of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of 
the school, calculated using a computerised mapping system. 
 
The tiebreaker for two or more applications whose home address is exactly the same 
distance from the school (and who are not from multiple births) will be random 
allocation using a computerised system. 
 
Multiple births 
  
If only one place is available at the school and the next child(ren) who qualifies for a 
place is one of multiple birth, we will ask community schools to go over their published 
admission number. 
 
Notes  
 
(i) Home address is defined as the child’s only or main residence. A business 

address, a childminder’s address or any address including a family member’s 
address other than the child’s only or main residence will not be accepted. 

(ii) If parents are separated, the application should be made by the parent the 
child normally lives with. Where a child spends equal time during the school 
week with each parent, the exact arrangements must be made clear in a 
letter with a copy of child arrangements order submitted with the application. 
It is the parents’ responsibility to agree between themselves and make clear 
which address will be used and to provide supporting evidence in respect of 
that address. An application can only be processed from one address. The 
final decision about which address is to be used rests with Haringey Council. 

(iii) Previously looked after children include those children who appear (to the 
admission authority) to have been in state care outside of England and 
ceased to be in state care as a result of being adopted. A child is regarded as 
having been in state care outside of England if they were in the care of or 

Page 14



 

 

were accommodated by a public authority, a religious organisation, or any 
other provider of care whose sole or main purpose is to benefit society. A 
sibling is a full brother or sister, a step/half brother or sister, a foster brother 
or sister or an adopted brother or sister living at the same address as the 
child for whom the application is being made. 

(iv) A sibling is a full brother or sister, a step/half brother or sister, a foster brother 
or sister or an adopted brother or sister living at the same address as the 
child for whom the application is being made. 

(v) Priority for children of teaching staff will be limited to one place for each form 
of entry in any year. Exception to this will apply to children of multiple birth or 
those born in the same academic year. All such applications must be 
submitted to the local authority and must be accompanied with the relevant 
paperwork supporting an application on these grounds. The applicant must 
take sole responsibility to provide such paperwork. Without the provision of 
the relevant papers, priority will not be given on these grounds. 

(vi) Haringey measures distance in a straight line from the Ordnance Survey 
address point of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of 
the school, calculated using a computerised mapping system. Measurements 
by alternative systems or to other points will not be taken into account in any 
circumstances. Where applicants have identical distance measurements, 
priority amongst them will be determined at random using a computerised 
system. 

 
 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix 2 
 

Determined Admission Arrangements for 
Reception and Junior Admissions 2023 

 
 
Oversubscription criteria 
 
When the school is oversubscribed, after the admission of pupils with an Education, 
Health and Care plannaming the school, priority for admission will be given to those 
children who meet the criteria set out below, in priority order: 
 
1. Children in Care/Looked After Children 
 
Children who are looked after by a local authority or were previously looked after but 
immediately after being looked after, became subject to an adoption, child 
arrangements, or special guardianship order. 
 
A looked after child is a child who is (a) in the care of a local authority, or (b) being 
provided with accommodation by a local authority in the exercise of their social 
services functions (see the definition in Section 22(1) of the Children Act 1989). 
 
2. Social Medical 
 
Children who the Authority accepts have an exceptional medical or social need for a 
place at one specific school. Applications will only be considered under this category 
if they are supported by a written statement from a doctor, social worker or other 
relevant independent professional.  The information must confirm the exceptional 
medical or social need and demonstrate how the specified school is the only school 
that can meet the defined needs of the child. 
 
3. Linked school 
 
This rule applies only to junior school admissions. Applicants attending an infant 
school will be prioritised under this rule for admission to the linked junior school.  The 
Linked infant and junior schools in Haringey normally share the same names (e.g. 
Rokesly Infant School is linked to Rokesly Junior School) with the exception of St 
Peter-in-Chains Infant School and St Gildas’ Junior School. 
 
4. Brother or Sister (sibling)  
 
Children with a brother or sister already attending the school or linked infant/junior 
school and who will still be attending on the date of admission.  
 
If a place is obtained for an older child using fraudulent information, there will be no 
sibling connection available to subsequent children from that family. 
 
5. Children of staff  
 
Children of teaching staff of the school where the member of staff has been 
employed at the school for two or more years at the time of application and/or 

Page 17



 

 

children of a member of staff who has been recruited to fill a vacancy for which there 
is a demonstrable skill shortage. 
 
 
6. Distance 
 
Children whose home address is closest to the preferred school. 
 
Distance will be measured in a straight line from the Ordnance Survey address point 
of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of the school, calculated 
using a computerised mapping system. 
 
Tiebreakers  
 
Children cannot be considered under more than one criterion. Within each criterion 
the sole tiebreaker to decide between two applications is children whose home 
address is closest to the school, measured in a straight line from the Ordnance 
Survey address point of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of 
the school, calculated using a computerised mapping system. 
 
The tiebreaker for two or more applications whose home address is exactly the same 
distance from the school (and who are not from multiple births) will be random 
allocation using a computerised system. 
 
Multiple births 
  
If only one place is available at the school and the next child(ren) who qualifies for a 
place is one of multiple birth, we will ask community schools to go over their published 
admission number. 
 
Notes 
 
(i) Home address is defined as the child’s only or main residence. A business 

address, a childminder’s address or any address including a family member’s 
address other than the child’s only or main residence will not be accepted. 

(ii) If parents are separated, the application should be made by the parent the 
child normally lives with. Where a child spends equal time during the school 
week with each parent, the exact arrangements must be made clear in a 
letter with a copy of any child arrangements order submitted with the 
application. It is the parents’ responsibility to agree between themselves and 
make clear which address will be used and to provide supporting evidence in 
respect of that address. An application can only be processed from one 
address. The final decision about which address is to be used rests with 
Haringey Council. 

(iii) Previously looked after children include those children who appear (to the 
admission authority) to have been in state care outside of England and 
ceased to be in state care as a result of being adopted. A child is regarded as 
having been in state care outside of England if they were in the care of or 
were accommodated by a public authority, a religious organisation, or any 
other provider of care whose sole or main purpose is to benefit society. 

Page 18



 

 

(iv) A sibling is a full brother or sister, a step/half brother or sister, a foster brother 
or sister or an adopted brother or sister living at the same address as the 
child for whom the application is being made. 

(v) Priority for children of teaching staff will be limited to one place for each form 
of entry in any year. Exception to this will apply to children of multiple birth or 
those born in the same academic year. All such applications must be 
submitted to the local authority and must be accompanied with the relevant 
paperwork supporting an application on these grounds. The applicant must 
take sole responsibility to provide such paperwork. Without the provision of 
the relevant papers, priority will not be given on these grounds. 

(vi) Haringey measures distance in a straight line from the Ordnance Survey 
address point of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of 
the school, calculated using a computerised mapping system. Measurements 
by alternative systems or to other points will not be taken into account in any 
circumstances. Where applicants have identical distance measurements, 
priority amongst them will be determined at random using a computerised 
system. 

 
Waiting lists 
 
Where a child does not receive an offer of their preferred school, parents can 
request that their name is placed on the waiting list for that school. Waiting lists are 
ordered, and places allocated as they become available, strictly in accordance with 
the school’s admissions criteria. 
 
Waiting list positions can change at any time and a child’s position may go down as 
well as up if other applicants with higher priority join the waiting list. Being on the 
waiting list does not guarantee a place in the school. 
 
Waiting lists are maintained throughout the year and are refreshed on an annual 
basis at the end of the summer term. At this time parents will be contacted to confirm 
if they wish for their child to remain on the waiting list. 
 
Nursery and Infant Pupils 
 
Admission to a nursery class in a school does not guarantee a place in the reception 
class at the same school. Similarly, admission to an infant school does not 
guarantee a place in the linked junior school. 
 
All parents/carers must complete their home authority School Admissions Application 
Form for admission to reception or to junior school (where applicable) by 15 January 
in the academic year their child turns four (reception) or seven (junior). 
 
 
Deferred entry - before compulsory school age 
 
Children will normally be admitted to the reception year in the September following 
their fourth birthday. In line with the School Admissions Code September 2021, 
parents can defer their child’s entry to the reception year until later in the school 

Page 19



 

 

year, where they have been offered a place at a school to start before they are of 
compulsory school age.  
 
Where entry is deferred, the school will hold the place for that child and not offer it to 
another child. However, entry cannot be deferred beyond the point the child reaches 
compulsory school age nor beyond the beginning of the final term of the Reception 
Year. 
 
Where the parents wish, children may attend part-time until later in the school year 
but not beyond the point at which they reach compulsory school age. 
 
Summer born – Children educated outside their chronological age group 
 
Paragraph 2.18 of the School Admissions Code, September 2021, states that the 
parents of a summer born child may choose not to send that child to school until the 
September following their fifth birthday and may request that they are admitted out of 
their normal age group – to reception rather than year 1.  
 
The Council, as the admission authority for Haringey community and voluntary 
controlled (VC) schools will make a decision regarding summer born requests on the 
basis of the circumstances of the case and in the best interests of the child 
concerned. This will include taking account of the child’s individual needs and 
abilities and to consider whether these can best be met in Reception or Year one. It 
will also involve taking account of -  
 

- the parents’ views  
- information about the child’s academic, social and emotional development  
- where relevant their medical history and the views of a medical professional 
- whether they have previously been educated out of their normal age group 
- whether they may naturally have fallen into a lower age group if it were not for 

being born prematurely, and  
- the potential impact on the child of being admitted to year one without first 

having completed the reception year.  
 
The views of the headteacher will be an important part of this consideration. 
 
Parents should write to the Council giving reasons for their request. This should be 
accompanied by an application for the child’s actual year group. The application will 
be processed and a school place will be secured in the child’s actual year group. 
This place can later be withdrawn if the request for delayed admission is approved. 
Parents who are granted their request must then make a fresh application on paper 
which will be considered in accordance with the school’s oversubscription criteria in 
the event of oversubscription. The decision will be reviewed once the child has 
started school at intervals agreed by the family and the school. 
 
Consideration to these requests will be taken by a panel of Haringey officers in the 
summer term of the year in which the child will be admitted to his or her correct age 
group. The panel will meet following the primary National Offer Day. If the parents 
would like to make an application for an own admission authority school, they will 
need approach the relevant school with their request.  
 

Page 20



 

 

Parents have a statutory right to appeal against the refusal of a place at a school for 
which they have applied. This right does not apply if they are offered a place at the 
school but it is not in their preferred age group. 
 
Published Admission Numbers (PAN)  
 
The published admission numbers for Haringey community and voluntary controlled 
(VC) primary schools for entry in September 2023 is as follows - 
 

School 
Admission 

number 
 School 

Admission 
number 

Alexandra 60  The Mulberry 90 

Belmont Infant 56  Muswell Hill 60 

Bounds Green 90  Rhodes Avenue 90 

Bruce Grove 60  Risley Avenue 90 

Campsbourne Infant 60  Rokesly Infant 90 

Coldfall 90  St Aidan’s VC 30 

Coleridge 120  Seven Sisters 60 

Crowland 60  South Harringay Infant 60 

The Devonshire Hill 60  Stroud Green 60 

Earlham 60  Tetherdown  60 

Earlsmead 60  Tiverton 30 

Ferry Lane 30  Welbourne 60 

Highgate 60  West Green 30 

Lancasterian 60  Weston Park  30 

Lea Valley 60  The Willow 60 

Lordship Lane 90    

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix 3 
 

Determined Admission Arrangements for 
Secondary Transfer 2023  

 
 
Oversubscription criteria 
 
When the school is oversubscribed, after the admission of pupils with an Education, 
Health and Care plan naming the school, priority for admission will be given to those 
children who meet the criteria set out below, in priority order: 
 
1. Children in Care/Looked After Children 
 
Children who are looked after by a local authority or were previously looked after but 
immediately after being looked after, became subject to an adoption, child 
arrangements, or special guardianship order. 
 
A looked after child is a child who is (a) in the care of a local authority, or (b) being 
provided with accommodation by a local authority in the exercise of their social 
services functions (see the definition in Section 22(1) of the Children Act 1989). 
 
2. Social Medical 
 
Children who the Authority accepts have an exceptional medical or social need for a 
place at one specific school. Applications will only be considered under this category 
if they are supported by a written statement from a doctor, social worker or other 
relevant independent professional. The information must confirm the exceptional 
medical or social need and demonstrate how the specified school is the only school 
that can meet the defined needs of the child. 
 
3. Brother or Sister (sibling)  
 
Children with a brother or sister already attending the school and who will still be 
attending in years 7-11 on the date of admission.  
 
If a place is obtained for an older child using fraudulent information, there will be no 
sibling connection available to subsequent children from that family. 
 
4. Children of staff  

 
Children of teaching staff of the school where the member of staff has been 
employed at the school for two or more years at the time of application and/or 
children of a member of staff who has been recruited to fill a vacancy for which there 
is a demonstrable skill shortage. 
 
5. Distance 
 
Children whose home address is closest to the preferred school. 
 

Page 23



 

 

Distance will be measured in a straight line from the Ordnance Survey address point 
of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of the school, calculated 
using a computerised mapping system. 
 
Tie breakers  
 
Children cannot be considered under more than one criterion. Within each criterion 
the sole tiebreaker to decide between two applications is children whose home 
address is closest to the school, measured in a straight line from the Ordnance 
Survey address point of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of 
the school, calculated using a computerised mapping system. 
 
The tiebreaker for two or more applications whose home address is exactly the same 
distance from the school (and who are not from multiple births) will be random 
allocation using a computerised system. 
 
Multiple births 
 
If only one place is available at the school and the next child(ren) who qualifies for a 
place is one of multiple birth, we will ask community schools to go over their published 
admission number. 
 
Notes  
 
(i) Home address is defined as the child’s only or main residence. A business 

address, a childminder’s address or any address including a family member’s 
address other than the child’s only or main residence will not be accepted. 

(ii) If parents are separated, the application should be made by the parent the 
child normally lives with. Where a child spends equal time during the school 
week with each parent, the exact arrangements must be made clear in a 
letter with a copy of any custody or residency order submitted with the 
application. It is the parents’ responsibility to agree between themselves and 
make clear which address will be used and to provide supporting evidence in 
respect of that address. An application can only be processed from one 
address. The final decision about which address is to be used rests with 
Haringey Council. 

(iii) Previously looked after children include those children who appear (to the 
admission authority) to have been in state care outside of England and 
ceased to be in state care as a result of being adopted. A child is regarded as 
having been in state care outside of England if they were in the care of or 
were accommodated by a public authority, a religious organisation, or any 
other provider of care whose sole or main purpose is to benefit society. 

(iv) A sibling is a full brother or sister, a step/half brother or sister, a foster brother 
or sister or an adopted brother or sister living at the same address as the 
child for whom the application is being made. 

(v) Priority for children of teaching staff will be limited to one place for each form 
of entry in any year. Exception to this will apply to children of multiple birth or 
those born in the same academic year. All such applications must be 

Page 24



 

 

submitted to the local authority and must be accompanied with the relevant 
paperwork supporting an application on these grounds. The applicant must 
take sole responsibility to provide such paperwork. Without the provision of 
the relevant papers, priority will not be given on these grounds. 

(vi) Haringey measures distance in a straight line from the Ordnance Survey 
address point of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of 
the school, calculated using a computerised mapping system. Measurements 
by alternative systems or to other points will not be taken into account in any 
circumstances. Where applicants have identical distance measurements, 
priority amongst them will be determined at random using a computerised 
system.  

 
Waiting lists 
 
Where a child does not receive an offer of their preferred school, parents can 
request that their name is placed on the waiting list for that school. Waiting lists are 
ordered, and places allocated as they become available, strictly in accordance with 
the school’s admissions criteria. 
 
Waiting list positions can change at any time and a child’s position may go down as 
well as up if other applicants with higher priority join the waiting list. Being on the 
waiting list does not guarantee a place in the school. 
 
Waiting lists are maintained throughout the year and are refreshed on an annual 
basis at the end of the summer term. At this time parents will be contacted to confirm 
if they wish for their child to remain on the waiting list. 
  

Page 25



 

 

Proposed Admission Criteria for 
Hornsey School for Girls for 2023 

 
When the school is oversubscribed, after the admission of pupils with an Education, 
Health and Care plan naming the school, priority for admission will be given to those 
children who meet the criteria set out below, in priority order: 
 
1. Children in Care/Looked After Children 
 
Girls who are looked after by a local authority or were previously looked after but 
immediately after being looked after, became subject to an adoption, child 
arrangements, or special guardianship order. 
 
A looked after child is a child who is (a) in the care of a local authority, or (b) being 
provided with accommodation by a local authority in the exercise of their social 
services functions (see the definition in Section 22(1) of the Children Act 1989). 
 
2. Social Medical 
 
Girls who the Authority accepts have an exceptional medical or social need for a 
place at one specific school. Applications will only be considered under this category 
if they are supported by a written statement from a doctor, social worker or other 
relevant independent professional. The information must confirm the exceptional 
medical or social need and demonstrate how the specified school is the only school 
that can meet the defined needs of the child. 
 
3. Siblings 
 
Girls with a sister already attending the school and who will still be attending in years 
7-11 on the date of admission. A sibling is a full sister, a step sister, a foster sister or 
an adopted sister living at the same address as the girl for whom the application is 
being made. 
 
If a place is obtained for an older child using fraudulent information, there will be no 
sibling connection available to subsequent children from that family. 
 
4. Children of staff  

 
Girls whose parent is a member of teaching staff of the school where the member of 
staff has been employed at the school for two or more years at the time of 
application and/or girls of a member of staff who has been recruited to fill a vacancy 
for which there is a demonstrable skill shortage. 
 
5. Distance  
 
Girls whose home address is closest to the school.   
 
Distance will be measured in a straight line from the Ordnance Survey address point 
of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of the school, calculated 
using a computerised mapping system. 

Page 26



 

 

 
Tie breakers 
 
Children cannot be considered under more than one criterion. Within each criterion 
the sole tiebreaker to decide between two applications is children whose home 
address is closest to the school, measured in a straight line from the Ordnance 
Survey address point of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of 
the school, calculated using a computerised mapping system. 
 
The tiebreaker for two or more applications whose home address is exactly the same 
distance from the school (and who are not from multiple births) will be random 
allocation using a computerised system. 
 
Multiple births 

 
If only one place is available at the school and the next girl(s) who qualifies for a place 
is one of multiple birth, we will ask community schools to go over their published 
admission number. 

 
Notes 

 
(i) Home address is defined as the child’s only or main residence. A business 

address, a childminder’s address or any address including a family member’s 
address other than the child’s only or main residence will not be accepted. 

(ii) If parents are separated, the application should be made by the parent the 
child normally lives with. Where a child spends equal time during the school 
week with each parent, the exact arrangements must be made clear in a 
letter with a copy of any custody or residency order submitted with the 
application. It is the parents’ responsibility to agree between themselves and 
make clear which address will be used and to provide supporting evidence in 
respect of that address. An application can only be processed from one 
address. The final decision about which address is to be used rests with 
Haringey Council. 

(iii) Previously looked after children include those children who appear (to the 
admission authority) to have been in state care outside of England and 
ceased to be in state care as a result of being adopted. A child is regarded as 
having been in state care outside of England if they were in the care of or 
were accommodated by a public authority, a religious organisation, or any 
other provider of care whose sole or main purpose is to benefit society. 

(iv) A sibling is a full brother or sister, a step/half brother or sister, a foster brother 
or sister or an adopted brother or sister living at the same address as the 
child for whom the application is being made. 

(v) Priority for children of teaching staff will be limited to one place for each form 
of entry in any year. Exception to this will apply to children of multiple birth or 
those born in the same academic year. All such applications must be 
submitted to the local authority and must be accompanied with the relevant 
paperwork supporting an application on these grounds. The applicant must 

Page 27



 

 

take sole responsibility to provide such paperwork. Without the provision of 
the relevant papers, priority will not be given on these grounds. 

(vi) Haringey measures distance in a straight line from the Ordnance Survey 
address point of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of 
the school, calculated using a computerised mapping system. Measurements 
by alternative systems or to other points will not be taken into account in any 
circumstances. Where applicants have identical distance measurements, 
priority amongst them will be determined at random using a computerised 
system.  

 
Waiting lists 
 
Where a child does not receive an offer of their preferred school, parents can 
request that their name is placed on the waiting list for that school. Waiting lists are 
ordered, and places allocated as they become available, strictly in accordance with 
the school’s admissions criteria. 
 
Waiting list positions can change at any time and a child’s position may go down as 
well as up if other applicants with higher priority join the waiting list. Being on the 
waiting list does not guarantee a place in the school. 
 
Waiting lists are maintained throughout the year and are refreshed on an annual 
basis at the end of the summer term. At this time parents will be contacted to confirm 
if they wish for their child to remain on the waiting list. 
 

Published Admission Number (PAN) 
 
The admission number for Haringey community schools for entry in September 2023 
is as follows:  
 
 

School 
Admission 

number 

Gladesmore Community School 243 

Highgate Wood School 243 

Hornsey School for Girls 162 

Park View School 216 

 

Page 28



Appendix 4 
 

Determined Admission Criteria for 
In-Year Admissions 2022 / 23 

 
 
Oversubscription criteria 
 
Primary, Infant and Junior community and voluntary controlled (VC) schools 
 

 The criteria set out in Appendix 2 will be applied.  
 
Secondary community schools 
 

 The criteria set out in Appendix 3 will be applied.   

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 7 

Appendix 5 

In-year fair access protocol for Haringey Schools 
March 2022 

 
Introduction 
 
1. The School Admissions Code, September 2021, (‘the Code’) requires local 

authorities to have in place a fair access protocol which all local schools and 
Academies must adhere to. 

 
2. Its aims are to: 

 

 acknowledge the real needs of vulnerable young people who are not on the 
roll of a school and to ensure that an appropriate placement is identified 
quickly and pupils are on roll within 15 days of the panel 

 

 seek to find an alternative placement or support for those on roll of a school 
where it can be demonstrated that they are at risk of permanent exclusion 
 

 fairly share the admission of vulnerable students across all schools and 
Academies (where the panel agree that another mainstream school place 
should be identified) 
 

 arrange such admissions openly through a process which has the confidence 
of all 
 

 record the progress and successes of the young people placed through this 
panel 

 

This protocol reflects the LA’s responsibility for safeguarding and promoting 
the welfare of children and young people as well as educational attainment 

 
3. It is essential to the success of fair access that all headteachers and governing 

bodies agree to the aims, principles and procedures and give their fullest 
support. 

 
4. All schools recognise their collective responsibility for all pupils and 

accountability for some and will work collaboratively to manage pupils with 
challenging behaviour, involving multi-agency support, accessed where 
appropriate. All members will work together to secure commitment to the 
inclusion agenda and to reduce exclusions from schools. 

 
Students within the scope of this scheme 

 
5. The admission to school of the following students falls within the scope of this 

scheme: 
 

Page 31



 

Page 2 of 7 

a. children either subject to a Child in Need Plan or a Child Protection Plan1 
or having had a Child in Need Plan or a Child Protection Plan within 12 
months at the point of being referred to the fair access panel ; 
 

b. children living in a refuge or in other Relevant Accommodation at the point 
of being referred to the fair access panel; 
 

c. children from the criminal justice system 
 
d. children in alternative provision who need to be reintegrated into 

mainstream education or who have been permanently excluded but are 
deemed suitable for mainstream education;  

 
e. children with special educational needs (but without an education, health 

and care plan), disabilities or medical conditions;  
 
f. children who are carers; 
 
g. children who are homeless;  
 
h.  children in formal kinship care arrangements2 
 
i. children of, or who are, Gypsies, Roma, Travellers, refugees and asylum 

seekers;  
 
j. children who have been refused a school place on the grounds of their 

challenging behaviour and referred to the FAP in accordance with 
paragraph 3.10 of the Code; 

 
k. children for whom a place has not been sought due to exceptional 

circumstances;3  
 
l. children who have been out of education for 4 or more weeks where it can 

be demonstrated that there are no places available at any school within a 
reasonable distance of their home. This does not include circumstances 
where a suitable place has been offered to a child and this has not been 
accepted; and  

 
m. previously looked after children for whom the local authority has been 

unable to promptly secure a school place.4 
 

                                                
1 Child in Need Plans and Child Protection Plans are plans of help and protection to address 
safeguarding and welfare needs, where a child has been assessed by the local authority as being a 
child in need under Section 17 of the Children Act 1989 and/or as suffering or likely to suffer significant 
hardship under Section 47 of the Children Act 1989. See also statutory guidance Working Together to 
Safeguard Children (2018) (pages 35 and 48 to 49). Where a local authority is advised that a child 
who has moved into the local authority had a Child in Need Plan or Child Protection Plan previously 
and meets the criteria outlined, this information may need to be checked with the previous local 
authority 
2 As evidenced by either a child arrangements order not relating to either birth parent or a special 
guardianship order. the FAP on this basis, based on the circumstances of the case. 
3 It is for the local authority to decide whether a child qualifies to be placed via the FAP on this basis, 
based on the circumstances of the case. 
 

Page 32



 

Page 3 of 7 

Managed moves & EHCPs 
 
6. The fair access panel does not administer the process for managed moves, 

however, schools may use it as a forum to discuss and liaise with other 
education providers regarding possible managed moves. 

 
7. Outside the panel, all schools must inform the School Admissions and 

Organisation Service of any pupil who they are going to refer for a managed 
move, so an accurate record of school attendance and managed moves 
currently in progress can be maintained by the local authority. Schools must also 
inform the School Admissions and Organisation Service of the outcome of a 
managed move, i.e. when a pupil moves permanently to their new school or that 
it is determined that they should remain at their original school.   

 
8. There are dedicated arrangements for children with Education, Health and Care 

plans and this protocol does not override those arrangements. However, it has 
been agreed that pupils who are placed through those arrangements will be 
noted by the fair access panel (see later section). 

 
Composition and frequency of the panel 
 

Secondary 
 

9. A panel, consisting of a minimum of 3 secondary Headteachers (or their 
designated representative), will meet once a month (or as necessary) to ensure 
prompt and fair allocation of young people to schools.  Heads will be notified of 
their designated meetings at the beginning of the academic year.  

 
10. The Head of Education Services or another designated local authority Officer 

will chair the panel. 
 
11. In the event that the placement decision is not unanimous, the designated 

Headteachers will decide by a majority vote  
 
12. Where a young person is known to a particular service or agency, an officer with 

knowledge of that young person will be invited to the panel, or a short written 
statement may be submitted. 

 
13. The membership of the panel can include as necessary, a representative of 

children’s social care, educational psychology service, youth offending service, 
children missing education, children in care, the police and any other relevant 
professional supporting a case. 

 
Primary 

 
14. A panel, consisting of no less than three primary Headteachers (or their 

designated representative), will meet once a half term, (or as necessary) to 
ensure prompt and fair allocation of young people to schools. 

 
15. The Head of Education Services or another designated local authority officer will 

chair the panel. 
 

Page 33



 

Page 4 of 7 

16. Where a young person is known to a particular service or agency, an officer with 
knowledge of that young person will be invited to the panel, or a short-written 
statement may be submitted. 

 
The decision-making process 
 
17. Cases will be brought to the panel by the Haringey Admissions Service which 

will be the point of referral.  The cases must be submitted under one of the 
categories given in paragraph 5 above and the child must be without a school 
place. 

 
18. The Panel will be administered by the Haringey Admissions Service which will 

provide data for the current and previous school year (figures to be based on 
actual figures where fair access pupils have been admitted). 

 
19. The following data will be provided at each panel: 

 

 The number of pupils on roll at each school in each year group 

 

 The number of vacancies at each school in each year group 

 

 The number of pupils that have been admitted to each school in each year 

group through the ‘normal’ in year admissions process since the last panel 

 

 The number of pupils that have been admitted to each school in each year 

group through the fair access admissions process since the last panel 

 

 The total number of pupils that have been admitted to each school in each 

year group through the fair access admissions process in the last academic 

year and the number of schools or Academies (if any) that have failed to admit 

 

 Background/ pupil history/ information, where available and where consent 

has been confirmed 

 

 The number of students with statements of Special Educational Need 

allocated over number through the SEN procedures. 

 
20. The placement panel for children in care will continue to determine the most 

appropriate placement for each young person and their case will be presented 
for the panel to ratify. In order to ensure that CIC are admitted to school quickly, 
they will be placed before the panel and it will not be possible for these cases to 
be brought back to the panel for reconsideration. 

 
21. When making the decision as to appropriate school placement for the child, the 

panel will take into account:  
 

 preferences made and views of parents/carers and the view of the pupil 
(including religious affiliation) 

 

Page 34



 

Page 5 of 7 

 the admissions criteria 
 

 the published admission number and number of forms, of entry so placements 
can be made proportional to the number of forms of entry 

 

 the number of students admitted through the fair access panel in the previous 
and current academic year 

 

 the needs of the student, where this is known 
 

 any capacity/capability reasons why the school may not be able to respond to 
the needs of the student 

 

 the individual context of a school in relation to recently excluded students 
 

 whether the applicant has previously attended a Haringey school. 
 

 it will be the presumption that wherever possible pupils will return to a school if 
they have previously been on roll there. 

 
22. In addition to the factors above each child will be allocated a set number of 

points under the below system, based on the likely complexity of support which 
the admitting school will need to put in place. The combined points of the 
children admitted to each school via fair access will be monitored, and when 
considering the equitable allocation of children the panel will take into account 
the proportion of complex cases which each school has already admitted. 

 

Fair Access Points System 

Weighting Case Factors 

3 points 
Permanent exclusion and/or Youth Offending 
Service involvement 

2 points 
More than one fixed term exclusion, a managed 
move, or other significant concerns (as agreed 
by panel) 

1 point All other allocations 

 
23. In cases where a child does not return to their previous Haringey school, that 

school will have the value of one child debited from their comparative fair access 
statistics, to reflect the loss of that child from the school’s roll. 

 

 This debit will apply regardless of whether the child was originally admitted to 
that school via the fair access protocol. 

 

 In cases where the child is being re-integrated into mainstream school from an 
alternative provision, and the child was previously permanently excluded or it 
is otherwise considered to be in the best interests of the child not to return to 
their previous school, this debit will not be applied. 
 

Page 35



 

Page 6 of 7 

 In cases where the child previously attended more than one Haringey school 
the debit will be applied solely to the school which the child most recently 
attended. 

 
24. Note: Where a school has admitted pupils above its admission number in error, 

these additional pupils will not count and cannot be off-set against fair access 
referrals. 

 
25. Where an alternative educational placement is determined most suitable to meet 

the needs of a young person, this provision will be identified in principle by the 
Inclusion Service, following assessment, and ratified by the panel. 

 
26. Decisions will be reached by consensus, whenever possible, with the chair 

mandated to take appropriate action where this has not proved possible. 
 
Implementation of the decisions 
 
27. Decisions regarding placement of students under the fair access protocol will be 

made by the panel, and will be final. 
 
28. Admission must take place within 15 school days of the school receiving 

notification of the decision. 
 
29. In exceptional circumstances, the allocated school may request that the panel 

reconsider their decision at the next meeting.  This will only be possible where 
the school has prior knowledge of the specific young person which was not 
known to the panel at the time of decision, which makes the placement 
inappropriate. This request must be made in writing to the Chair within 5 school 
days of the school receiving notification of the decision.  The formal offer letter 
will be sent on the 6th day. 

 
30. The Department for Education recognises that admission of a young person via 

fair access could potentially take the school above the planned admission 
number for that year group. 

 
31. It is recognised that there is usually little available information about the young 

people who are being admitted in-year to school. The School Admissions and 
Organisation Service will try to acquire as much educational information as 
practical to accompany in-year admissions to assist smooth integration to the 
school. 

 
Risk assessments 
 
32. Risk assessments will be undertaken as necessary by the referring body. 
 
Relationship with appeals 
 
33. Where young people are admitted to a school above the planned admission 

number in any year group under the protocol, this should not prejudice the 
provision of efficient education or the efficient use of resources of the school. 

 
34. Appeal panels will be made aware of the conditions of the scheme, and that the 

admission of an additional student under this scheme is different from a school 

Page 36



 

Page 7 of 7 

voluntarily exceeding its admission limit. Panels will also be made aware that 
any decision made to allow appeals will place further pressure on the school’s 
resources. 

 
35. A school placement made through the FAP shall not remove a parent/carer’s 

right to appeal for a school place elsewhere. 
 

Monitoring the operation of the Protocol 
 
36. The School Admissions and Organisation Service will undertake scheduled 

checks and monitor admission dates and pupil days. 
 
37. The anonymised details of all decisions will be made available to the Director 

and Lead Member to demonstrate that the Protocol is being effective. 
 
38. This will include any school or Academy that has not taken a pupil on roll within 

15 days of the decision being notified. 
 
39. Details of any school or Academy who has not taken a pupil on roll within 15 

days of the decision will also be available at the next fair access meeting. 
 
40. On the 16th day the Head of Education Services will contact in writing the 

Headteacher of any school or Academy that has failed to admit within the 
agreed timeframe to request an on roll date. 

 
41. If the school or Academy fails to provide an on roll date, within agreed 

timescales, then the direction process will apply as set out in the School 
Admissions Code and in accordance to the Department for Education advice:  
“Fair Access Protocols Guidance for school leaders, admission authorities and 
local authorities” August 2021. 

 
42. The protocol will be reviewed on an annual basis by the Local Authority, in 

conjunction with Headteachers/ principals, in order to assess its effectiveness in 
ensuring that unplaced children are being allocated places at schools/ 
academies or in alternative educational provision on an equitable basis. 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Appendix 6 
 

Determined Admission Arrangements for 
Sixth Form Admissions 2023 

 
Highgate Wood School 
 
Maximum number of students to be admitted from outside the school = 30% 
 
All students will be invited to an informal discussion about their subject choice. The 
general entry requirements are as follows: 
 
A Level 
 
At least five GCSE passes at 9 – 5, with specific requirements for particular subjects 
based upon the national statistical guidance for successful outcomes. We consider 
ourselves to be an open access Sixth Form and so the criteria are matched to what is 
required to ensure positive outcomes. Full details for different subjects are available on the 
website.  
 
Oversubscription criteria 
 
Where the number of eligible external applicants for a course of study exceeds the places 
available then admission will be determined in accordance with the following priority of 
admission criteria: 
 

1. Students who have an Eucation Health and Care Plan specifically naming the 
school. 
 

2. Children who are looked after by a local authority or were previously looked after 
but immediately after being looked after, became subject to an adoption, child 
arrangements, or special guardianship order. 
 
A looked after child is a child who is (a) in the care of a local authority, or (b) being 
provided with accommodation by a local authority in the exercise of their social 
services functions (see the definition in Section 22(1) of the Children Act 1989). 
 

3. Students who will have a sibling attending the school at the point of admission.  
 

4. Students whose home address (i.e. their only or main residence) is  closest to the 
school.  

 
Distance will be measured in a straight line from the Ordnance Survey address point of the 
student’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of the school, calculated using a 
computerised mapping system. 
 
Tie breakers  
 
Children cannot be considered under more than one criterion. Within each criterion the 
sole tiebreaker to decide between two applications is children whose home address is 
closest to the school, measured in a straight line from the Ordnance Survey address point 
of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of the school, calculated using a 
computerised mapping system. 
 

Page 39



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

The tiebreaker for two or more applications whose home address is exactly the same 
distance from the school (and who are not from multiple births) will be random allocation 
using a computerised system. 
 
 
Notes  
 
(i) Home address is defined as the child’s only or main residence. A business 

address, a childminder’s address or any address including a family member’s 
address other than the child’s only or main residence will not be accepted. 

(ii) If parents are separated, the application should be made by the parent the child 
normally lives with. Where a child spends equal time during the school week with 
each parent, the exact arrangements must be made clear in a letter with a copy of 
any child arrangements order submitted with the application. It is the parents’ 
responsibility to agree between themselves and make clear which address will be 
used and to provide supporting evidence in respect of that address. An application 
can only be processed from one address. The final decision about which address is 
to be used rests with Haringey Council. 

(iii) Previously looked after children include those children who appear (to the 
admission authority) to have been in state care outside of England and ceased to 
be in state care as a result of being adopted. A child is regarded as having been in 
state care outside of England if they were in the care of or were accommodated by 
a public authority, a religious organisation, or any other provider of care whose sole 
or main purpose is to benefit society. 

(iv) A sibling is a full brother or sister, a step/half brother or sister, a foster brother or 
sister or an adopted brother or sister living at the same address as the child for 
whom the application is being made. 

(v) Haringey measures distance in a straight line from the Ordnance Survey address 
point of the child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of the school, 
calculated using a computerised mapping system. Measurements by alternative 
systems or to other points will not be taken into account in any circumstances. 
Where applicants have identical distance measurements, priority amongst them will 
be determined at random using a computerised system.  

 
 

 

Page 40



 

www.haringey.gov.uk 

Appendix 7  
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 
The Equality Act 2010 places a ‘General Duty’ on all public bodies to have ‘due regard’ 
to the need to: 

- Eliminating discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 

prohibited under the Act; 

- Advancing equality of opportunity between those with a ‘relevant protected 

characteristic’ and those without one; 

- Fostering good relations between those with a ‘relevant protected characteristic’ 

and those without one. 

 

In addition the Council complies with the Marriage (same sex couples) Act 2013. 

 

Stage 1 – Screening  

 
Please complete the equalities screening form. If screening identifies that your proposal is 
likely to impact on protect characteristics, please proceed to stage 2 and complete a full 
Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA).    
 

Stage 2 – Full Equality Impact Assessment  

 
An EqIA provides evidence for meeting the Council’s commitment to equality and the 
responsibilities under the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 

When an EqIA has been undertaken, it should be submitted as an 
attachment/appendix to the final decision-making report. This is so the decision 
maker (e.g. Cabinet, Committee, senior leader) can use the EqIA to help inform their 
final decision.  The EqIA once submitted will become a public document, published 
alongside the minutes and record of the decision.  
 
Please read the Council’s Equality Impact Assessment Guidance before beginning the 

EqIA process.  

 

1. Responsibility for the Equality Impact Assessment      

Name of proposal  Admissions Arrangements  

Service area   Schools and Learning 

Officers completing assessment  Nick Shasha and Carlo Kodsi  

Equalities/ HR Advisor  Fatimah Basama 

Cabinet member signing date (if 
applicable)  

 

Director/Assistant Director   Eveleen Riordan 

 
 

2. Summary of the proposal  
 
Please outline in no more than 3 paragraphs  

 The proposal which is being assessed  

Page 41



2 

 

 The key stakeholders who may be affected by the policy or proposal  

 The decision-making route being taken 

 

This Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) accompanies the Cabinet report 
Determination of the Council’s School Admission Arrangements for the academic year 
2023/24 which recommends that Cabinet agree to consult on the proposed admissions 
arrangements for the academic year 2023/24.   
 
Key stakeholders are parents, carers, staff, children and young adults educated in 
Haringey community schools. In addition, the same set of stakeholders across the 6 
London boroughs neighbouring Haringey. 
 
To ensure as wide a consultation as possible we intend to provide details of the proposed 
admission arrangements in the following ways: 

 

 through the Schools Bulletin which is distributed to the headteacher and chair of 
governors of schools in the borough 

 through direct emails to head teachers and Chairs of Governors 

 to all children’s centres in the borough 

 to all registered nurseries and child minders and any other early years providers 

 on the Council’s online primary and secondary admissions page  

 via information in all libraries across the borough 

 to all councillors 

 to both MPs with constituencies in Haringey 

 to the diocesan authorities 

 to neighbouring authorities  

 other groups, bodies, parents and carers as appropriate 
 
An Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) will form an important part of the consultation and 
will seek to ascertain whether the proposed Admission Arrangements could have an 
impact on protected groups and whether there are steps that can and/or should be taken 
to mitigate against such an impact. 
 
The Local Authority has a duty to put in place admission arrangements that comply with 
the mandatory provisions set out in the School Admissions Code 2021. These consist of 
Admissions Criteria and a Coordinated scheme and aim to provide a clear admissions 
system and oversubscription criteria which are transparent to those parents applying for a 
school place.  
 
The Council is the admissions authority for community and voluntary controlled (VC) 
schools within the borough and therefore is responsible for determining the admission 
arrangements for these schools. Academies, foundation schools and voluntary aided 
schools are their own admissions authority; they must consult on and then determine their 
own admissions arrangements.  The Council has a statutory duty to monitor the 
arrangements determined by own admitting authority schools to ensure compliance with 
the School Admissions Code. The Council is the coordinating authority for all schools in 
the Borough (except independent fee-paying schools) and will send out school place offer 

Page 42



3 

 

letters to all Haringey residents where a school place has been applied for in any given 
year.       
 
The school admissions framework is intended to ensure that the school admissions 
system is fair to all children regardless of race, ethnicity, gender or ability.  
 

“In drawing up their admission arrangements, admission authorities must ensure that 
the practices and the criteria used to decide the allocation of school places are fair, 
clear and objective. Parents should be able to look at a set of arrangements and 
understand easily how places for that school will be allocated” page 7, para 3 - 
School Admissions Code 2021. 

 
The Code provides admission authorities with some flexibility to determine and implement 
their own admission arrangements through local consultation, in order to meet 
circumstances in their area. However, the purpose of the framework is to aim to ensure 
that unlawful and unfair arrangements are not adopted and that the needs of all children 
are met.  
 
As in all boroughs, some schools are more popular than others and inevitably some 
parents will not secure a place at their preferred school. However, the Local Authority has 
ensured that the proposed Haringey Admission arrangements 2023/24 are compliant with 
all areas of the Admissions Code, are equitable and transparent and include measures to 
actively promote fairness.  
 
Proposed Admission Criteria 
 
The proposed admission criteria previously determined vary only slightly according to the 
type of provision (nursery1, primary, secondary etc) they apply to – the criteria for all these 
settings can be viewed in appendix 1 through to appendix 3. However, the main principles 
for Haringey community and VC schools are set out below: 
 
Statement of Special Education Needs - When the school is oversubscribed, after the 
admission of pupils with an Education, Health and Care plan or statement of special 
educational needs naming the school, priority for admission will be given to those children 
who meet the criteria set out below, in priority order: 
 
If the number of applicants without statements of educational needs/ECHP naming the 
school is higher than the number of places available, the following rules are applied, in the 
order of priority to decide who will be offered a place: 
 
1. Children in Care/Children Looked After 
 
Children who are looked after by a local authority or were previously looked after but 
immediately after being looked after, became subject to an adoption, child arrangements, 
or special guardianship order. 
 

                                                 
1 In the case of nurseries, the Authority is responsible for admissions but these are managed by schools with 
nurseries and nursery centres.  
 

Page 43



4 

 

A looked after child is a child who is (a) in the care of a local authority, or (b) being 
provided with accommodation by a local authority in the exercise of their social services 
functions (see the definition in Section 22(1) of the Children Act 1989). 
 
Previously looked after children include those children who appear (to the admission 
authority) to have been in state care outside of England and ceased to be in state care as 
a result of being adopted. A child is regarded as having been in state care outside of 
England if they were in the care of or were accommodated by a public authority, a religious 
organisation, or any other provider of care whose sole or main purpose is to benefit 
society. 

 
2. Social Medical 
 
Children who the Authority accepts have an exceptional medical or social need for a place 
at one specific school. Applications will only be considered under this category if they are 
supported by a written statement from a doctor, social worker or other relevant 
independent professional. The information must confirm the exceptional medical or social 
need and demonstrate how the specified school is the only school that can meet the 
defined needs of the child. 
 
3. Brother or Sister (sibling)  
 
Children with a brother or sister already attending the school and who will still be attending 
in years 7-11 on the date of admission.  
 
If a place is obtained for an older child using fraudulent information, there will be no sibling 
connection available to subsequent children from that family. 
 
4. Children of staff  
 
Children of teaching staff of the school where the member of staff has been employed at 
the school for two or more years at the time of application and/or children of a member of 
staff who has been recruited to fill a vacancy for which there is a demonstrable skill 
shortage. 
 
5. Distance 
 
Children whose home address is closest to the preferred school. 
 
Distance will be measured in a straight line from the Ordnance Survey address point of the 
child’s home to the Ordnance Survey address point of the school, calculated using a 
computerised mapping system. 
 
Proposed Pan London Co-ordinated Scheme 2023/24 
 
Haringey Council’s coordinated scheme is developed in line with the Pan London 
recommendations and sets out the procedures that all schools for which Haringey is the 
admitting or coordinating authority agree to sign up to.  
 
In-Year Fair Access Scheme 

Page 44



5 

 

 
The 2023/24 arrangements also contain an In-Year Fair Access Scheme which 
acknowledges the need to deal with vulnerable young people who are not on the roll of a 
school, quickly and sympathetically. This scheme also fairly shares the burden of admitting 
vulnerable students across all schools and academies, taking account of their resources to 
support each pupil.  
 
In line with the new provisions of the Code, the fair access scheme now encompasses 
wider categories of children – unplaced, vulnerable and those who are unable to secure a 
school place in-year. This results in a greater number of categories of children who may be 
eligible for support under FAP (paragraph 3.17 of the Code) but those are the only 
categories of child who may be supported – there can be no local variation, as is the case 
in Haringey fair access protocol in para. 5 at Appendix 5.  
 
Relevant Legislation 
 
According to the Equality Act 2010 an admission authority must not discriminate on the 
grounds of disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or 
belief, sex, or sexual orientation against a person in the arrangements and decisions it 
makes as to who is offered admission as a pupil. This Act contains limited exceptions to 
the prohibition of discrimination on grounds of religion or belief and sex. Schools 
designated by the Secretary of State as having a religious character (faith schools) or 
single sex schools are exempt as they are allowed to make a decision based on religious 
belief or sex respectively.  
 
Admission authorities are also subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty and therefore 
must have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, and 
victimisation, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations in relation to 
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 

3. What data will you use to inform your assessment of the impact of the proposal 
on protected groups of service users and/or staff?  
 
Identify the main sources of evidence, both quantitative and qualitative, that supports 
your analysis. Please include any gaps and how you will address these  
 
This could include, for example, data on the Council’s workforce, equalities profile of 
service users, recent surveys, research, results of relevant consultations, Haringey 
Borough Profile, Haringey Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and any other sources of 
relevant information, local, regional or national. For restructures, please complete the 
restructure EqIA which is available on the HR pages. 
 

Protected group Service users (pupils and 
parents/carers) 

Staff 

Sex May 2021 School census 
GLA data: projections based on 
Census 2011 (GLA Population 
Projections (london.gov.uk)) 
ONS data: birth characteristics in 
England Wales: 2019 (Birth 

SFR25 (Statistical First 
Release, DfE) 

Page 45

https://maps.london.gov.uk/population-projections/
https://maps.london.gov.uk/population-projections/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/livebirths/bulletins/birthcharacteristicsinenglandandwales/2019#age-of-parents


6 

 

characteristics in England and 
Wales - Office for National 
Statistics (ons.gov.uk)) 

Gender 
Reassignment 

No national or local collected 
data 

No national or local collected 
data 

Age May 2021 School census SFR25 
ONS data: birth characteristics 
in England Wales: 2019 (Birth 
characteristics in England and 
Wales - Office for National 
Statistics (ons.gov.uk)) 

Disability 2021 School census and data 
from Haringey SEN team 

No national or local data 
available 

Race & Ethnicity May 2021 School census SFR25 

Sexual Orientation No local collected data on sexual orientation, however there is 
ONS annual population data (2016) and ONS sexual identity, UK 
(2015), which are estimates. 

Religion or Belief 
(or No Belief) 

Synthetic data derived from the 2011 ONS National census 

Pregnancy & 
Maternity 

2011 census 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

2011 census 

 

Outline the key findings of your data analysis. Which groups are 
disproportionately affected by the proposal? How does this compare with the 
impact  on wider service users and/or the borough’s demographic profile? Have 
any inequalities been identified? 
 
Explain how you will overcome this within the proposal. 
 
Further information on how to do data analysis can be found in the guidance. 
 

 
1. Sex  
 
Service users (Primary and secondary age children by Sex) 
 

 

Primary 
Reception to 

Yr 6 

Secondar
y Yrs 7-

11 

Grand 
Total 

Primary 
Receptio
n to Yr 6 

Secondar
y Yrs 7-

11 

Grand 
Total 

Female 9,889 6,618 16,50
7 

49% 49% 49% 

Male 10,437 6,876 17,31
3 

51% 51% 51% 

Grand Total 20,326 13,494 33,82
9 

100% 100% 100% 

 
Source: School Census May 2021 
 

Page 46

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/livebirths/bulletins/birthcharacteristicsinenglandandwales/2019#age-of-parents
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/livebirths/bulletins/birthcharacteristicsinenglandandwales/2019#age-of-parents
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/livebirths/bulletins/birthcharacteristicsinenglandandwales/2019#age-of-parents
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/livebirths/bulletins/birthcharacteristicsinenglandandwales/2019#age-of-parents
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/livebirths/bulletins/birthcharacteristicsinenglandandwales/2019#age-of-parents
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/livebirths/bulletins/birthcharacteristicsinenglandandwales/2019#age-of-parents
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/livebirths/bulletins/birthcharacteristicsinenglandandwales/2019#age-of-parents


7 

 

There are slightly more male than female pupils in both primary and secondary schools.  
 
Service users (parents/carers) 
 
Borough wide data indicates that there is a gender split of males 50.7% to females 
49.3%. There is no available data indicating the proportion of each which is also a 
parent/carer. 
 
Staff at Haringey schools 
 

 Male (%) Female (%) 

Teachers 29% (692) 71% (1,708) 

Teaching 
assistant
s 

19% (177) 81% (771) 

Other 
support 
staff 

6% (18) 94% (269) 

Administr
ative staff 

30% (123) 70% (289) 

Technicia
ns 

56% (44) 44% (34) 

Auxiliary 
staff 

16% (81) 84% (440) 

 
 
Source: SFR25 2020/2021 
 
The majority of Haringey school staff are female, and this is reflected in each category of 
school staff except technicians. The imbalance of teaching staff is most apparent 
amongst other support staff, of which 6% are male.  
 
 
2. Gender reassignment 
 
We do not hold data on the number of people who are seeking, receiving or have 
received gender reassignment surgery, and there is not national data collected for this 
characteristic. The Equality and Human Rights Commission estimate that there are 
between 300,000-500,000 transgender people in the UK. We will need to consider the 
inequalities and discrimination experienced for this protected group. For the purposes of 
this EqIA, we will use the inclusive term Trans* in order to represent the spectrum of 
transgender and gender variance.  
 
 
3. Age 
 
Service users (Primary and secondary children by Age and gender) 

Page 47



8 

 

 

Year group Male Female Grand Total 

Reception 1,497 1,435 2,932 

Year 1 1,443 1,407 2,850 

Year 2 1,448 1,392 2,840 

Year 3 1,475 1,372 2,847 

Year 4 1,506 1,375 2,881 

Year 5 1,477 1,457 2,934 

Year 6 1,591 1,451 3,042 

Year 7 1,372 1,374 2,746 

Year 8 1,431 1,358 2,789 

Year 9 1,432 1,336 2,768 

Year 10 1,312 1,290 2,602 

Year 11 1,329 1,260 2,589 

Grand Total 17,313 16,507 33,820 

 
Source: School Census May 2021 
 
Broadly, the number of children entering Haringey’s school system has increased year-
on-year though primary cohorts are now reducing whilst secondary cohorts are growing. 
That said, the School census data from May 2021 indicates a general even split across 
each of the age groups, with no particular overrepresentation in any of the age cohorts 
and no resultant implications anticipated in relation to the school admissions proposals. 
 
Service users (parents/carers) 
 
GLA data projections approximate 21% of Haringey’s population to be aged 0-17, 27% 
aged 18-34, 25% aged 35-49, 17% aged 50-64, and 11% aged over 65. ONS data 
indicates that, nationally, the mean average age for becoming a mother is 30.7 years old 
and a father, 33.6 years old. On this basis, it may be assumed that the majority of those 
in the 35-65+ cohort, representing a total of 53%, are parents or carers, alongside a 
proportion of those in the 18-34 age bracket. 
 
 
Staff at Haringey schools 
 

Age group Headcount Percentage (%) 

Under 25 96 4% 

25 to 29 383 16% 

Page 48



9 

 

30 to 39 808 34% 

40 to 49 579 24% 

50 to 59 445 19% 

Over 65 89 4% 

Grand Total 2,400 100% 

Source: SFR25 2020/2021 
Note: Percentages (%) may not add up to 100% due to rounding. 
 
The data indicates the majority of staff in Haringey schools are between the ages of 30 
to 49.  
 
We do not hold schools data which captures the numbers of staff who also have school 
age children. National data indicates that the mean age of mothers is 30.7 years old and 
fathers 33.6 years old. On the basis of the national data on the mean age of becoming a 
parent, we can assume that staff between 30 and 49, who make up the majority of the 
Haringey schools workforce, are also most likely to have school-age children.  
 
4. Disability 
 
Service users (pupils) 
 
Total number of Children & Young People with statements or plans maintained by 
Haringey as at March 2021 
 

Year Totals Year Totals 

Pre-School/Nursery  30 Year 9 149 

Reception  114 Year 10 142 

Year 1  115 Year 11 160 

Year 2  115 Year 12 145 

Year 3  124 Year 13 159 

Year 4 131 Year 14 126 

Year 5 124 Year 15 98 

Year 6 159 Year 15 plus 332 

Year 7 142 

Totals 2,513 Year 8 148 

 
Source: Haringey SEN team 2018 
 
The data demonstrates that there are a range of children with disabilities and that they 
are evenly represented across age groups. The proposed arrangements prioritise 
children meeting the criteria for a statement of special educational needs as well as also 
giving priority to children with  social and medical considerations that meet the criterion 

Page 49



10 

 

for an exceptional medical or social need. We do not hold data on pupils with less 
complex disabilities who do not qualify for either category.  
 
Service users (parents/carers) 
 
Data on parents’ and carers’ disability status is not available. Borough-wide Census data 
may have some read across to this cohort, although this is of limited use for the purpose 
of this analysis. This indicates that, while 14% of Haringey residents reported having a 
condition that limits their day-to-day activities, 83.2% reported themselves to be in good 
or very good health. 5.7% self-reported as being in bad or very bad health, and 11.2% in 
fair health.   
 
Staff at Haringey schools 
 
We do not hold borough-wide schools data on the disability status of Haringey staff. The 
Census data set out above may have some read across to the schools workforce, but 
we do not have access to additional data in this respect.  
  
5. Race and ethnicity 
 
Service users (pupils)  
 
Ethnic composition (main groups) of Haringey’s school pupil population as at 2020/21:  
 

Haringey (Sub category) 

 Number % 

Any other ethnic group 2,671 6.9% 

Any other ethnic group – Arab 180 0.5% 

Asian - Any other Asian background 581 1.5% 

Asian – Bangladeshi 1,036 2.7% 

Asian – Chinese 358 0.9% 

Asian – Indian 381 1.0% 

Asian – Pakistani 356 0.9% 

Black - Any other Black background 797 2.1% 

Black - Black African 5,239 13.6% 

Black - Black Caribbean 2,270 5.9% 

Mixed - Any other Mixed background 2,217 5.7% 

Mixed - White and Asian 842 2.2% 

Mixed - White and Black African 635 1.6% 

Mixed - White and Black Caribbean 1,055 2.7% 

Unclassified 1,297 3.4% 

White - Any other White background 10,506 27.2% 

Page 50



11 

 

White - Gypsy/Roma 102 0.3% 

White – Irish 278 0.7% 

White - Traveller of Irish heritage 35 0.1% 

White - White British 7,725 20.0% 

Grand Total 38,561 100% 

Source: DfE Schools, pupils and their characteristics as at 2020/21 
 
The data demonstrates the significant diversity of school-age children in Haringey, with a 
general overrepresentation of minority groups compared with data on the wider Haringey 
population. 27.2%of Haringey’s pupils are from Any other white background whilst 
20.0% are White-British. Some 13.6% of primary pupils are Black African and 5.9% are 
Black Caribbean. 6.9% of pupils are from any other ethnic group, with a level of 
representation seen across all other ethnic groups too.  
 
Service users (parents/carers) 
 
There is no data available on the ethnicity of parents and carers. However, this should 
largely reflect the ethnicity figures set out above in respect of pupils, as their children 
(with the exception of children in care that may be placed in foster care).   
 
Census data indicates that the majority of the population are White British (34.7%), 
followed by White – Other (23.0%). 9.0% are Black African and 7.1% are Black 
Caribbean. While not a direct mirror of the data seen across the pupil cohort, the trends 
are not dissimilar, and deviations are likely due to the significant passage of time since 
the Census figures were collated. 
 
Staff at Haringey schools 
 

 All who are not 
minority ethnic 

group (%) 

All who are 
minority ethnic 
group including 
white minorities 

(%) 

Information 
not yet 

obtained (%) 

Refused (%) 

Teachers 47% (1,117) 43% (1,027) 10% (247) 0.3% (9) 

Teaching 
assistant
s 

35% (442) 58% (733) 7% (93) - 

Non-
classroo
m-based 
support 
staff 

41% (143) 52% (181) 6% (22) - 

Administr
ative staff 

46% (219) 48% (227) 6% (27) - 

Technicia
ns 

45% (40) 55% (48) N/A - 

Page 51



12 

 

Auxiliary 
staff 

24% (326) 68% (934) 8% (117) - 

 
Specified ethnicity of teachers 

 White (%) Any Other mixed 
background (%) 

Asian or Asian 
British (%) 

Black or Black 
British (%) 

Teachers 63% (1,515) 4% (101) 7% (162) 12% (298) 

 
Source: SFR25 2020/2021 
 
The staff ethnicity data shows the broad composition of ethnicities among classroom 
and non-classroom staff.  
 
For teaching staff in Haringey schools there is a slight majority (47%) of not minority 
group compared to 43% who are Ethnic minority including white minorities. Across all 
staff other than teachers most staff at Haringey schools are Ethnic minority including 
white minorities. 
 
A greater proportion of Haringey teachers identify as White (63%) compared to Haringey 
pupils (48.3%).  
 
6. Sexual orientation 
 
We do not hold ward or borough level data on sexual orientation, and it is not collected 
nationally through the Census. It is also difficult to assess sexual orientation across the 
pupil cohort given the age variances and limitations on data collection possible with this 
group. 
 
However, the ONS estimates that 3.7% of Haringey’s population are lesbian, gay or 
bisexual (LGB), which is the 15th largest LGB community in the country2, and may be 
reflected in parent and staff populations. ONS data shows that 0.5% families are same 
sex cohabitating couples 3, which suggests that LGB people are less likely to be parents, 
compared with the wider population.  
 
7. Religion or belief (or no belief) 
 
Service users (pupils) 
 
Religion or belief is not covered by the PLASC school census, which means that we 
don’t have access to relevant records. The best alternative proxy is the Haringey data 
derived from the England and Wales Census 2011 data on religion by age. Data on the 
appropriate age groups (0-4, 5-7, 8-9, 10-14, 15, 16-17 and 18-19) has been combined 
to provide an approximation of the likely religious or belief profile of school age children 
in Haringey.  

                                                 
2https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/articles/subnationalsexualidentityest

imates/uk2013to2015#introduction 
3 https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/bulletins/sexualidentityuk/2015 

Page 52



13 

 

 
The notional number is based upon the known sample size of pupils in Haringey 
(38,561) multiplied through the distribution of religion or belief from the 2011 Census.  
 

 Percentage (%) 
Notional 
Number 

Christian 41.1% 15,849 

No religion 20.0% 7,712 

Religion not stated 10.4% 4,010 

Muslim 21.3% 8,213 

Jewish 4.9% 1,889 

Hindu 1.0% 386 

Buddhist 0.7% 270 

Sikh 0.3% 116 

Other religion 0.2% 77 

Total 100% 38,561 

Source: ONS (2011 Census data for Haringey) 
Note: * Totals may not add up due to rounding 
 
The data demonstrates that Christian and Muslim pupils are the largest faith groups 
within Haringey’s pupil cohort (41.1% and 21.3% respectively), followed by those with no 
religion (10.4%), with the expectation that this reflects the religious beliefs of parents in 
Haringey who are likely to define their child’s religious beliefs.  
 
Service users (parents/carers) 
 
While there is no data available on religious beliefs of Haringey parents/carers, Census 
data follows the trend seen above, indicating that Christianity and Islam are the main 
religions in Haringey (45.0% and 14.2% respectively), with 25.2% of residents having no 
religion.  
 
Staff at Haringey schools  
 
There is no publicly available data on the religious beliefs of Haringey’s schools staff. 
These may reflect the borough-wide position. 
 
8. Pregnancy and maternity4  
 
The proportion of 0-4 year old in the latest ONS mid year population estimates (mid 
2020):  

 Percentage (%) / Number of 0-4 year olds 

Haringey  6.5% / (17,426) 

London 6.6% / (595,799) 

                                                 
4 ONS MYE 2020 

Page 53



14 

 

England and Wales 6.2% (3,400,788) 

 
Haringey has a higher proportion compared to the England and Wales average, but is 
marginally below the London average, indicating that there may be increased numbers 
of mothers with young children in Haringey for whom the admissions arrangements 
might have an impact. However, we do not hold data on whether these mothers are also 
likely to have older children of school age, to whom the admissions arrangements would 
be relevant.  
 
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership5 
 

 Married (heterosexual 
couples) 

Civil Partnership 

Haringey 32.2% 0.6% 

London 40% 0.4% 

England and Wales 47% 0.2% 

Source: Census 2011 data 
 
This protected characteristic is by its very nature relevant to parents/carers and teachers 
only. The number of married people (only available to heterosexual couples at the time 
of the data being collected) is significantly lower than in London and England. However, 
the proportion of people in civil partnerships is higher in the area compared to the 
London and England and Wales average. Decisions will need to ensure all couples in a 
civil partnership are treated exactly the same as couples in a marriage. We do not hold 
data which demonstrates the relationship between marital status and likelihood of being 
a parent/carer of a school-aged child in Haringey, for parents or staff. 
 

 
 

4. a) How will consultation and/or engagement inform your assessment of the 
impact of the proposal on protected groups of residents, service users and/or 
staff?  
 
Please outline which groups you may target and how you will have targeted them 
 
Further information on consultation is contained within accompanying EqIA guidance  

 
The consultation seeks to establish the key concerns and issues of stakeholders and 
clarify if they identify those issues also shown in the EqIA. Stakeholders such as pupils, 
parents, carers, school staff and governors will be invited to participate in a consultation 
and share their views including whether or not they agreed with each proposal and if not, 
why not. To this purpose an annual Admissions Arrangements survey has been 
developed which attempts to ascertain views on several educational admission themes.  
 
To ensure as wide a consultation as possible we intend to provide details of the 
proposed admission arrangements in the following ways: 

 

                                                 
5 Census 2011 

Page 54



15 

 

 through the Schools Bulletin which is distributed to the headteacher and chair 
of governors of schools in the borough 

 through direct emails to head teachers and Chairs of Governors 

 to all children’s centres in the borough 

 to all registered nurseries and child minders and any other early years 
providers 

 on the Council’s online primary and secondary admissions page  

 via information in all libraries across the borough 

 to all councillors 

 to both MPs with constituencies in Haringey 

 to the diocesan authorities 

 to neighbouring authorities  

 other groups, bodies, parents and carers as appropriate 
 
Stakeholders will also be given the opportunity to express their views in writing via a 
questionnaire – both electronically and via the hard copy attached to the consultation 
document, by email and post. 
 

4. b) Outline the key findings of your consultation / engagement activities once 
completed, particularly in terms of how this relates to groups that share the 
protected characteristics 
 
Explain how will the consultation’s findings will shape and inform your proposal and the 
decision making process, and any modifications made?  
 

 
Overall we received 3 responses to the consultation. 
 
This year we did not propose a change to the admission arrangements including the 
oversubscription criteria for community and VC schools.  
 
While there are other ways admission arrangements can influence the allocation of 
school places set out in the Schools Admissions Code 2021 (e.g. designated catchment 
areas, identified feeder schools or giving priority in our oversubscription criteria to 
children eligible for the early years premium/ pupil premium), none of the above serve 
the local interest of our families and school communities so no alternative option is being 
considered at the time of writing this report. 
 
Responses were received via questionnaire and were in favour of the proposed 
arrangements and fair access protocols (see below). This can be interpreted to suggest 
that our arrangements continue to serve the local interest of our families and school 
communities. 
One respondent sought to clarify the way Haringey approaches the fair access protocol 
and stated that “Haringey need to demonstrate that the usual, reasonable IYAP 
procedures have been used before a student comes to the FAP. FAP should only be 
used in exceptional circumstances.” Please see Appendix 7b – Responses to the 
consultation for the full response. 
 
There were several objections received from another respondent and these are 
summarised below.  

Page 55



16 

 

 
A) “Haringey need to demonstrate that the usual, reasonable IYAP procedures 

have been used before a student comes to the Fair Access Panel (FAP). FAP 
should only be used in exceptional circumstances.”  
 
LA response: Children are referred to the fair access panel only if they 
qualify under the scheme of the protocol and in accordance with the 
requirements set out at para. 3.17 of the Admissions Code. Our records 
indicate there have only been a very small number of cases referred to panel 
under exceptional circumstances since the beginning of the 2021/22 
academic year. See more information at para. C) below.   
 

B) “In addition, 3.19 of the code states that parental views may be sought but 

should not determine the outcome of the FAP. Parental preference should not 

be a feature of the FAP, as it leads to unrealistic expectations for parents. (Pt 

21: "preferences made and views of parents/carers and the view of the pupil 

(including religious affiliation)".   

 

LA response:  The panel is fully aware that there is no duty to comply with 

parental preference (the fair access guidance6 produced by the DfE sets this 

out), but the Code is very clear (para. 3.19) that parents’ views should be 

taken into account. The protocol already acknowledges that the panel must 

make a decision on the most appropriate provision in the child’s best 

interests, irrespective of parental preference. We have found that families are 

more willing to engage if parental preference has been met and the views of 

parent/carers and the view of the pupil (including religious affiliation) must 

always be taken into account in line with statutory guidance.  It should also be 

noted that there are instances where parental preference as expressed, 

cannot be complied with by the Panel and we work with the family to manage 

expectations around this. 

 

C) “Pt 5: Exceptional circumstances as defined by the LA: what evidence can 

schools reasonably expect to explain Haringey's decision to categorise an 

application as 'exceptional'? There is concern that the criteria at 5K in the 

Protocol is used too widely. 'Exceptional' should be used rarely.”  

 

LA response: A decision to categorise an application as ‘exceptional’ is 

made based on the circumstances of the case and in line with the 

requirements of the Admissions Code. Our records indicate that since the 

beginning of the academic year, only a very small number of cases have 

been referred to the panel under ‘exceptional’ circumstances.  

 

                                                 
6https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1012993/

FAP_Guidance.pdf  

Page 56

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1012993/FAP_Guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1012993/FAP_Guidance.pdf


17 

 

These cases relate predominantly to applications for a Year 10 place where 

we are not able to meet parental preference and there is a limited number of 

secondary schools with vacancies. A decision to allocate a school place in an 

open and transparent forum is favoured by panel members so we can ensure 

there is fair distribution of pupils, and no single school receives a 

disproportionate number of Year 10 pupils. The vast majority of applications 

for a Year 10 place are processed through the normal in-year admissions 

route. On average, only 1 or 2 are referred to the fair access panel each 

month because we have not able to meet parental preference.  

 

D) There is also concern that when a student is placed via the FAP the siblings' 

link, or any other priority link should not be applied subsequently to that 

family.  

 

LA response: The current admission arrangements for Haringey give priority 

to siblings attending the school regardless of which criterion they were 

admitted under. There are no plans to alter the sibling criterion for children 

admitted via fair access because it would cause disproportionate 

disadvantage to these families, many of whom are already highly vulnerable.  

 
E) “Pt 28: 15 days between notification and admittance does not always allow 

for the timely sharing of vital information, particularly with reference to social 

services, both Haringey and other LAs.  We also need information from the 

previous school when the young person is presented to panel. If no 

information is forthcoming an extension should be granted. This also has 

implications for the 6 days permitted to return the student to panel.” 

 

LA response: The Code sets out that once a child has been allocated a 

school place via the fair access protocol, arrangements should be made for 

the child to start at the school as soon as possible. Information gathering 

should not be a barrier to admission and schools must not delay on the basis 

that they have not received timely information from a previous school or from 

Social Care. The Code specifically states that admission authorities must not 

refuse to admit a child solely because information has not been 

received from their previous school (para. 2.9 d).  

 

F) “Para21. final bullet point (The presumption that a pupil will return to the 

school where they were previously on roll)...) This should be removed. 

Instead it should say that the individual circumstances of the child should be 

looked at before this decision is made. It is clear that returning a student is 

not always in their best interest.” 

 

Page 57



18 

 

LA response: The panel collectively agreed some years ago to introduce this 

as a preventative strategy to mitigate against schools off-rolling pupils 

unlawfully and to date, it has been very effective. It is already recognised in 

the protocol that it may not be in the best interest for every single pupil to 

automatically return to their former school. Suitable alternatives to returning to 

the former school have been sought by panel members in the past because it 

has not been appropriate, and this remains a viable option in any discussion 

on any child.  

 
G) Year 11 students - are the views of the students taken into account when 

they come through FAP? Is it the correct time to move schools? Are they 

made fully aware of the curriculum implications when moving schools? 

 

LA response: Children referred to fair access transferring from other schools 

are referred because they are not able to continue to travel to their current 

school because it is considered to be an unreasonable travelling distance 

(more than 3 miles). This unreasonable distance will have been the result of a 

house move.  These pupils are treated as unplaced and are frequently  new 

arrivals in Haringey from other parts of the UK. Continuing to attend their 

previous school is not practically feasible, irrespective of curriculum 

implications. We are aware that Haringey schools work to match curriculum 

and syllabus requirements for these children, wherever possible.  

 
Our response to queries around how we undertake the Fair Access Panel is as follows:  
 
“Haringey’s Fair Access Protocol 
 
Haringey’s fair access protocol ensures unplaced children, especially the most 
vulnerable, are offered a school place without delay and is a statutory requirement set 
out in the School Admissions Code 2021. This is a statutory requirement set out in the 
Code. In using the protocol, Haringey ensures that these children and young people are 
shared fairly across all Haringey schools and that this process is open and transparent. 
 
All Haringey schools, including schools that are their own admission authority continue 
to support the principles and approach of the fair access protocol. Paragraph 3 at 
Appendix 5 sets out that “it is essential to the success of the fair access protocol that all 
headteachers and governing bodies agree to the aims, principles and procedures and 
give their fullest support.”  
On the basis of the consultation responses received, we are satisfied that no 
amendments to the current admissions arrangements are necessary, with overall 
positive feedback on the impacts of the proposed arrangements on Haringey’s pupils 
and families. 
 

 
 

Page 58



19 

 

5. What is the likely impact of the proposal on groups of service users and/or staff 
that share the protected characteristics?  
 
Please explain the likely differential impact on each of the 9 equality strands, whether 
positive or negative. Where it is anticipated there will be no impact from the proposal, 
please outline the evidence that supports this conclusion.    
 
Further information on assessing impact on different groups is contained within 
accompanying EqIA guidance  

 
1. Sex (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will have on this protected 
characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the overall impact of this 
proposal on this protected characteristic) 
 
 

Positive  Negative  Neutral 
impact 

X Unknown 
Impact 

 

 
All primary and all but one secondary school within the borough are coeducational. 
Regardless of the Haringey coeducational school that doesn’t admit boys, there is 
sufficient capacity to accommodate pupils of all sexes in a school of preference or within 
the reasonable travelling distance guidelines set out by the DfE.  
 
For all of these schools, the sex of the pupil is not a factor of the admission 
arrangements, with no implications therefore based on this protected characteristic.  
 
Female school staff may be positively impacted by the admission arrangements since 
they form a larger percentage of staff by sex. This is bolstered by the fact that they are 
generally also at an age generally associated with child birth.  
 
The admission arrangements do not have an impact on the sex of the different 
parent/carer compositions within Haringey households.  
 
Sex is not a factor of the admission arrangements, so this protected characteristic is not 
affected. 
 
2. Gender reassignment (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will 
have on this protected characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the 
overall impact of this proposal on this protected characteristic) 
 
 

Positive  Negative  Neutral 
impact 

 Unknown 
Impact 

X 

There are no proposals in the admissions arrangements that are anticipated to affect 
this protected characteristic, notwithstanding the limitations in the data available in 
respect of this protected characteristics.  
 
Steps will be taken to ensure that this protected group is not subject to discrimination as 
a result of this change in criteria.  
 

Page 59



20 

 

3. Age (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will have on this protected 
characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the overall impact of this 
proposal on this protected characteristic) 
 

Positive  Negative  Neutral 
impact 

X Unknown 
Impact 

 

 
In terms of implications for pupils and their parents or carers, the policy applies equally 
to all children of statutory school age as defined by the Admissions Code 2021 with no 
particular age brackets overrepresented in the adult or pupil population, with no 
particular impacts anticipated as a result.  
 
4. Disability (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will have on this 
protected characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the overall 
impact of this proposal on this protected characteristic) 
 

Positive X Negative  Neutral 
impact 

 Unknown 
Impact 

 

 
In light of the above commentary, we have focused our analysis on the impact of the 
proposals for pupils with a disability or a special educational need. Section 324 of the 
Education Act 1996 requires the governing bodies of all maintained schools to admit a 
child with a statement of special educational needs/EHCP that names their school. 
These children are placed in the relevant school before all other places are allocated. 
Where a child with a disability or special educational needs is to attend a Special 
School, allocation of places is through a specialist panel and sits outside of the scope of 
these admission arrangements.  
 
Our admission arrangements include a social medical criterion that can give priority to 
children with special educational needs but without an Education Health and Care Plan.  
However, the threshold is very high, and parent/carers need to demonstrate to a panel 
that only one school can meet their child’s needs in a way that no other school can. All 
Haringey schools are able to work with special educational needs and are expected to 
accommodate severe and other medical needs and offer pastoral support to children. All 
Haringey schools are able to support children with a wide range of abilities, special 
needs, disabilities and learning difficulties, from able, gifted, and talented pupils to those 
with multiple and significant disabilities, medical conditions and learning difficulties. 
 
Children with special educational needs who do not have an Education Health and Care 
Plan also qualify under the fair access protocol, meaning that a larger number of 
children with special education needs of varying levels should be positively impacted by 
the proposed arrangements. Overall, the admission arrangements are anticipated to 
have a positive impact on Haringey pupils with this protected characteristic, recognising 
however that, where children do not meet the required threshold, allocation of their 
school space will be defined according to the remainder of the admissions rules and 
they may not be positively impacted in the same way. 
 
We do not hold sufficient data on the disability status of parents/carers or staff to 
understand if there will be any impacts on these cohorts of individuals.  
 

Page 60



21 

 

5. Race and ethnicity (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will have 
on this protected characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the 
overall impact of this proposal on this protected characteristic) 
 

Positive X Negative  Neutral 
impact 

 Unknown 
Impact 

 

 
The Local Authority has a duty to ensure the proposed arrangements do not unfairly 
disadvantage any child based on race. While there is an overrepresentation of children 
from ethnic minority backgrounds among the pupil population of Haringey, the 
admissions arrangements apply across the piece regardless of ethnic identity.  It should 
however be recognised that the operation of the Fair Access Protocol may have a 
particular positive impact on pupils from certain ethnic minority groups who meet its 
requirements, recognising the intersection between race and ethnicity, socioeconomic 
disadvantage, and disadvantage as a whole, which the Protocol is targeted at 
addressing. 
 
While the data demonstrates that there is a slight majority of minority ethnicities across 
Haringey’s school staff, we do not know the proportion of which are also parents of 
school-aged children who might benefit from admissions arrangements giving priority to 
children of staff. That said, it is anticipated that this provision will have a positive impact 
on staff from minority ethnicity backgrounds, given their slight overrepresentation among 
the wider staff population. 
 
6. Sexual orientation (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will have on 
this protected characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the overall 
impact of this proposal on this protected characteristic) 
 

Positive  Negative  Neutral 
impact 

X Unknown 
Impact 

 

 
All schools included in the arrangements have to admit pupils regardless of sexual 
orientation. 
 
We do not hold ward or borough level data on sexual orientation, and it is not collected 
nationally through the Census. However, the ONS estimates that 3.7% of Haringey’s 
population are lesbian, gay or bisexual (LGB), which is the 15th largest LGB community 
in the country7, which is likely to be reflected in both the pupil and parent populations. 
However, ONS data shows that 0.5% families are same sex cohabitating couples8, 
which suggests that LGB people are less likely to be parents, compared with the wider 
population. However, we will need to ensure that discrimination based on sexual 
orientation is eliminated in the application of this criteria. 
 
We do not anticipate that the admissions arrangements will have any impact on people 
based on their sexual orientation and we will continue to ensure there is no 
discrimination based on sexual orientation. 
 

                                                 
7https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/articles/subnationalsexualidentityest

imates/uk2013to2015#introduction 
8 https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/bulletins/sexualidentityuk/2015 

Page 61



22 

 

7. Religion or belief (or no belief) (Please outline a summary of the impact the 
proposal will have on this protected characteristic and cross the box below on your 
assessment of the overall impact of this proposal on this protected characteristic) 
 

Positive  Negative  Neutral 
impact 

X Unknown 
Impact 

 

 
For community and VC schools, religion is not a factor of the admission arrangements.  
 
The governing bodies of faith schools are the admitting authorities for these schools and 
the admissions criteria are therefore outside of these arrangements. Faith schools are 
allowed to set objective criteria relating to faith, in line with the mandatory provisions of 
the Schools Admission Code. 
 
Notwithstanding that data shows a marked overrepresentation of Muslim children across 
the cohort of Haringey pupils in comparison with data on the wider population, there is 
no evidence to suspect that children with any particular religion or belief (or indeed 
none) will be disproportionately affected by the admissions proposals. 
 
8. Pregnancy and maternity (Please outline a summary of the impact the proposal will 
have on this protected characteristic and cross the box below on your assessment of the 
overall impact of this proposal on this protected characteristic) 
 
 

Positive x Negative  Neutral 
impact 

 Unknown 
Impact 

 

 
In addition to the criteria set out in Section 1, if only one place is available at the school 
and the next child who qualifies for a place is one of multiple birth, the Local Authority 
would ask community schools to go over their published admission number. This aspect 
of the criteria ensures that multiple birth families are not disadvantaged by the proposed 
arrangements. 
 
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership (Consideration is only needed to ensure there is no 
discrimination between people in a marriage and people in a civil partnership) 
 
There are no proposals in the Admissions Arrangements that affect this protected 
characteristic.  
 
Teachers or teaching assistants in a civil partnership who may be affected by the 
arrangements will be treated the same as people who are married. 
 

Positive  Negative  Neutral 
impact 

X Unknown 
Impact 

 

 
10. Groups that cross two or more equality strands e.g. young black women 
 
The proposal is likely to have a positive impact on groups with intersecting protected 
characteristics. These groups include: 

Page 62



23 

 

- female schools staff - as women are overrepresented among Haringey school staff and 

the proposal targets parents with school-aged children. 

- Children from ethnic minority groups. Evidence shows that they are more likely to face 

socioeconomic disadvantage, are overrepresented among the population of children in 

care or children who are looked after, and are more likely to have a disability or special 

educational needs. The prioritisation of the admissions criteria means that children from 

ethnic minority backgrounds are on the whole likely to be positively impacted by the 

proposed arrangements. 

 

Outline the overall impact of the policy for the Public Sector Equality Duty:  

 Could the proposal result in any direct/indirect discrimination for any group 

that shares the relevant protected characteristics?  

 Will the proposal help to advance equality of opportunity between groups 

who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not?   

This includes: 

a) Remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons protected 
under the Equality Act 

b) Take steps to meet the needs of persons protected under the 
Equality Act that are different from the needs of other groups 

c) Encourage persons protected under the Equality Act to participate 

in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 

persons is disproportionately low 

 Will the proposal help to foster good relations between groups who share a 

relevant protected characteristic and those who do not?   

 

  
The admission arrangements do not differ materially from the arrangements for previous 
years, and we therefore do not consider that there are any new or specific Equalities 
issues to emerge from these general admissions arrangements. We continue to monitor 
and assess the impact of any changing trends for consideration when admissions 
criteria are set each year. 
 

 

6. a) What changes if any do you plan to make to your proposal as a result of the 
Equality Impact Assessment?  
 
Further information on responding to identified impacts is contained within 
accompanying EqIA guidance  

Outcome Y/N 

No major change to the proposal: the EqIA demonstrates the proposal is 
robust and there is no potential for discrimination or adverse impact. All 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken. If you have found any 
inequalities or negative impacts that you are unable to mitigate, please provide 
a compelling reason below why you are unable to mitigate them. 

Y 

Adjust the proposal: the EqIA identifies potential problems or missed 
opportunities. Adjust the proposal to remove barriers or better promote equality. 

 

Page 63



24 

 

Clearly set out below the key adjustments you plan to make to the policy. If 
there are any adverse impacts you cannot mitigate, please provide a compelling 
reason below 

Stop and remove the proposal: the proposal shows actual or potential 
avoidable adverse impacts on different protected characteristics. The decision 
maker must not make this decision. 
 

 

6 b) Summarise the specific actions you plan to take to remove or mitigate any 
actual or potential negative impact and to further the aims of the Equality Duty   
 

Impact and which 
relevant protected 
characteristics are 

impacted? 

Action Lead officer Timescale 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

Please outline any areas you have identified where negative impacts will happen 
as a result of the proposal, but it is not possible to mitigate them. Please provide a 
complete and honest justification on why it is not possible to mitigate them. 

 

 

 

 

 

6 c) Summarise the measures you intend to put in place to monitor the equalities 
impact of the proposal as it is implemented:    
 

 
Training – Staff in the Haringey School Admissions and Organisation Service are 
provided with yearly refresher training in line with the admission arrangements and 
appeal regulations which addresses any changes to either the criteria or co-ordinated 
schemes. 
 
Monitoring - The Head of Admissions and School Organisation at Haringey Council will 
be responsible for monitoring. The School Admissions Return to DfE is an annual report 
which sets outs information on the effectiveness of the admission arrangements and 

Page 64



25 

 

compliance with the requirements of the Code. The annual report to the Office of 
Schools‟ Adjudicators monitors the fairness of the admission arrangements. This 
information is reported to the DfE and the OSA annually.  
 
Two main mechanisms will be used by the DfE to provide feedback on how effective the 
measures in the revised Codes and regulations have been and to inform future policy 
development. In producing his annual report for the Secretary of State, the Schools 
Adjudicator will take account of the reports he will receive from each local authority on 
the legality, fairness, and effectiveness of local admission arrangements.  
 
Appeal arrangements - Admission arrangements are subject to an appeal process that 
gives parents the right to appeal decisions. The process is also used to hold admissions 
authorities to account and ensure that the arrangements have been applied correctly.  
 

 
 
 
 

7. Authorisation   

 
EqIA approved by   ........................................... 
                             (Assistant Director/ Director) 

 
Date   ……………………. 

 

8. Publication  
Please ensure the completed EqIA is published in accordance with the Council’s policy.  

 
 

 
 Please contact the Policy & Strategy Team for any feedback on the EqIA process. 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



 

www.haringey.gov.uk 

Appendix 7b  
 

RESPONSES TO ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS CONSULTATION 
 
Background: There were 3 responses to the 2023-24 Admissions Arrangements 
consultation which closed on January 7th 2022 . 
 
Question 1: Are you Resident / Parent / Teacher / Headteacher / Governor / Local 
Authority / Other 
 
Responses: Two parents and one Headteacher responded.  
 
Question 2: Please use the space below to tell us what you think of our proposed nursery 
admission arrangements? 
 
Responses: One respondent commented “I think the nursery admission arrangements are 
clearly stated, and provides fair access to those who are vulnerable, and accessibility to 
those resident in the community.” 
 
Question 3: Please use the space below to tell us what you think of our proposed 
reception and junior admission arrangements? 
 
Responses: One respondent commented “I think the reception and junior admission 
arrangements are clearly stated, and provides fair access to those who are vulnerable, 
and accessibility to those resident in the community”. 
 
Question 4: Please use the space below to tell us what you think of our proposed 
secondary admission arrangements? 
 
Responses: One respondent commented “Happy with the current arrangements” whilst 
another commented “I think the secondary admission arrangements are clearly stated, and 
provides fair access to those who are vulnerable, and accessibility to those resident in the 
community.” 
 
Question 5: Please use the space below to tell us what you think of our proposed in-year 
admission arrangements? 
 
Responses: One respondent commented “I think the in-year admission arrangements are 
clearly stated, and provides fair access to those who are vulnerable, and accessibility to 
those resident in the community” whilst another commented “We are in agreement with the 
Haringey protocol”.  
 
Question 6: Please use the space below to tell us what you think of our proposed in-year 
fair access admission arrangements? 
 
Responses: One respondent commented “I think the in-year fair access protocol are 
clearly stated, and provides those who are vulnerable, a fair, transparent and collaborative 
systemic process to ensure their continued access to education.”  
 

Page 67

https://www.haringey.gov.uk/children-and-families/schools-and-education/school-admissions/admission-arrangements/consultation-school-admission-arrangements
https://www.haringey.gov.uk/children-and-families/schools-and-education/school-admissions/admission-arrangements/consultation-school-admission-arrangements


2 

 

Another commented “Haringey need to demonstrate that the usual, reasonable IYAP 
procedures have been used before a student comes to the FAP. FAP should only be used 
in exceptional circumstances.  
 
In addition, 3.19 of the code states that parental views may be sought but should not 
determine the outcome of the FAP. Parental preference should not be a feature of the 
FAP, as it leads to unrealistic expectations for parents.  (Pt 21: "preferences made and 
views of parents/carers and the view of the pupil (including religious affiliation)").   
 
Pt 5: Exceptional circumstances as defined by the LA: what evidence can schools 
reasonably expect to explain Haringey's decision to categorise an application as 
'exceptional'? There is concern that 5K is used too widely. 'Exceptional' should be used 
rarely. There is also concern that when a student is placed via the FAP the siblings' link or 
any other priority link should not be applied subsequently to that family.  
 
Pt 28: 15 days between notification and admittance does not always allow for the timely 
sharing of vital information, particularly with reference to social services, both Haringey 
and other LAs.  We also need information from the previous school when the young 
person is presented to panel. If no information is forthcoming an extension should be 
granted. This also has implications for the 6 days permitted to return the student to panel.   
 
Para21. final bullet point (The presumption that a pupil will return...)This should be 
removed. Instead it should say that the individual circumstances of the child should be 
looked at before this decision is made. It is clear that returning a student is not always in 
their best interest.  
 
Year 11 students - are the views of the students taken into account when they come 
through FAP? Is it the correct time to move schools? Are they made fully aware of the 
curriculum implications when moving schools? 
 
Question 7: Please use the space below to tell us what you think of our proposed sixth 
form admission arrangements? 
 
Responses: One respondent commented “This only refers to Highgate Wood Sixth form 
which publishes a tough admissions criteria but restricts access from outside of the area 
given the strict guidelines on distance.” 
 

Page 68


	Agenda
	3 Admission to Schools - Determined Admission Arrangements for 2023/24
	Appendix 1 - Nursery 2023
	Appendix 2 - Reception and Junior 2023
	Appendix 3 - Secondary Transfer 2023
	Appendix 4 - In Year Admissions
	Appendix 5 - Fair Access Protocol
	Appendix 6 - Sixth Form 2023
	Appendix 7 - Equalities Impact Assessment
	Appendix 7b Responses to the consultation


